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ANDINA PLC

GLOSSARY

ADEERA Association of Electric Power Distributors of the Argentine Republic
CAMMESA Compania Administradora del Mercado Mayorista ElOctrico

(the company in charge of the regulation and operation of the wholesale electricity
market)

DNU Executive Order issued on the grounds of Necessity and Urgency
EDELCOS Empresa de Energia del Cono Sur S.A.
EDENOR Empresa Distribuidora y Comerciahzadora Norte 5k
EDEMSA Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de Mendoza SA.
ENRE Ente Nacional Regulador de Ia Electricidad (National Regulatory Authority for the

Distribution of Electricity)
EPRE Ente Provincial Regulador Electrico (Mendoza’s electricity market regulatory

authority)
GWh Gigawatt hour
HASA Hidroeléctrica Ameghino S.A.
HDS Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A.
ICSID International Center for Settlement of Investment Disputes
INDEC National Statistics Institute
RAM National Institute of Standardization and Certifications

MEM Mercado Electrico Mayorista (Wholesale Electricity Market)
RTI Tariff Structure Review
SEN National Secretary of Energy
VAD Distribution Added Value (Tariff)
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Directors presen: their S;rategc Report on the Grcup for the year ended 3 Decembe 2321.

Overview
Andina Plc (‘Andina” or the ‘Company’ and with its subsidiaries the ‘Group’) is a Latin American energy group with
participation in two of the largest electricity utilities in terms of market share in Argentina Energy is our core business;
we are involved in the distribution of electricity and regulated public services, we participate in the electricity generation
market through our interest in HASA who operates a hydroelectric power plant, and we are focused on developing
renewable energy projects.

Key financial results incorporating the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

• Revenue US$227.5 million (2020: US$189.3 million)

* Operating profit US$17.4 million (2020: US$9.0 million loss)

Business review
The Groups principal activity is electricity distribution in the regulated public sector in Argentina Its principal assets
are an I 1.93% interest in Empresa Distribuidora y Comerciaiizadora Norte S.A. (“EDENOR), the largest electric’ty
d slrbution company in Argertra in terms of number of customers ann electrcity scld: a 5% controlling interest in
Empresa Distribu oora de Electr cidad de Me.ndoza S. A. (EDEMSA”). the main &eclricity dis:ribulion company in the
Province of Mendoza and a 23.6% in:erest in Hi&oelAct’ica Ameghino S. A. (‘HASN). a 60MW hydroelecric power
plant in tne orovince of Chubut.

Revenue for the Group for the year increased from US$1893 million in 2020 to US$227.5 million in 2021. Revenue
from operating ac.vities increased by 20% oue tc the increase in the volume of electric.ty d s:riou:ion ard the tariff
increases appl ed in Jaruary and Seotember 2021.

The Groups total assets have increased from US$327.4 mi lion at the ero of 2020 to US$426 7 million at tie end of
20 mainly due to the investment in SAE LLP and additions to propely. plant and equ:pment increase

Total current liabilities increased from Us$208.3 million at the end of 2020 to Us$248.9 milhon at the end of 2021. At
the year-end, the Group had cash resources of US$5.8 million compared to Us$1 0.2 million at the end of 2020.

Borrowings! excluding leases, have increased from US$5.8 million at the end of 2020 to US$1 2.9 million at the end of
2021. Current borrowings. excluding leases, decreased from US$2.9 million at the end of 2020 to US$0.1 million at
the end of 2021 (due to the cancellation of the SAED loan) and non-current borrowings, excluding leases, inoreased
from US$2.9 million at the end of 2020 to US$1 2.9 million at the end of 2021 (due to new loans entered for the EDENOR
acquisition).

Operating and financial review
Due to the continuous significant devaluation of the AR$, the financial review has been prepared in both AR$ and US$
to facilitate a better understanding of the underlying business performance.
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

ED EM SA

Financial review
In 2021 EDEMSA reported a post-tax loss of US$19.6 million (AR$2,008.5 million - loss) compared with a US$20.9
million post-tax loss in 2020 (AR$2,638.6 million - loss).

Sales slightly increased in real terms compared to the previous year (0.2%) mainly because of the tariff increases in
January and September 2021 and the 3% increase in the sales volumes. Cost of sales decreased by 15.8%. This was
mainly due to a 25.5% decrease in the supply costs. All this caused the gross margin in real terms to increase from
US$24.6 million in 2020 (AR$3,100 million) to US$61 million in 2021 (AR$6,259 million).

Finance costs mainly relate to interest charged on the outstanding payables due to CAMMESA which are the subject
of ongoing negotiations to resolve the level of electricity tariffs increases in the past few years to reach a settlement
agreement.

Income tax has been impacted by changes introduced in income tax rates, meaning the deferred tax liability arising
on fixed assets has been measured at a rate of 35% rather than at a rate of 25%, as well as by the recognition of a
tax inflation adjustment of US$30 million (AR$3,084.4 million) in fiscal year 2021.

Operating review
During 2021, ongoing focus on productivity and process efficiency continued. It was a year of economic recovery in
Argentina after an atypical 2020 severely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

During 2021, the amount of energy sold totaled 3,208 GWh, which represents an increase of 3.4% as compared to
2020 and the maximum value of power reached was 1.2% above that of the previous year.

During 2021, levels of energy losses reached 16.19%, which represents a slight decrease compared to the 16.49%
of 2020. Energy losses are equivalent to the difference between energy purchased and energy sold.

Tariff update
The VAD is the amount of income required annually for the distributor to carry out the technical and commercial
operation in its concession area, through efficient management and to ensure the long-term financial sustainability of
the distributor.

The 5th tariff review was commenced on 6 February 2017 by the Ente Provincial Regulador Electrico (“EPRE”)
covering a period from 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2023. Following a public hearing on 3 July 2018 new tariffs were
enforced on 1 August 2018. The new tariff tables were the same as those previously in force and did not reflect the
significant cost increases of the electricity providers. Consequently! EDEMSA appealed this new tariff and is currently
awaiting the resolution of this appeal.

On 8 January 2020 and on 28 July 2020, EDEMSA submitted 2 requests to EPRE for a recurring six-monthly review
of the electricity distribution companies! VAD according to the protocols established under the previously published
Decree 48117, Following a public hearing on 26 February 2020 and another on 11. December 2020, Decree 08/21 was
published instructing EPRE to put into effect a new tariff scheme effective as of 6 January2021.

On 29 January2021, EDEMSA submitted another request to EPRE for a recurring six-monthly review of the electricity
distribution companies! VAD according to the protocols established under the previously published Decree 48117.
Following a public hearing on 30 June 2021, Decree 1430121 was published instructing EPRE to update the tariff,
which became effective on 20 September2021.

On 29 July2021, EDEMSA submitted a further request to EPRE for a recurring semi-annual tariff review under Decree
48/17. Following a public hearing on 18 November 2021, Decree 25/22 was published instructing EPRE to put into
effect a new tariff scheme effective as of 13 January 2022. This decree came into effect in 2022.

In the inflationary context in which the Argentinian companies are operating, to the extent that the biannual tariff rate
adjustment is granted according to current regulations, EDEMSA’s economic and financial situation will significantly
improve, as will the value of the business. This will have a highly positive impact on the Group’s financial situation.
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CAMMESA debt
CAMMESA is the company responsible for the regulation and operatior. of the whc esa e eiectr city market, EDEMSA
purchases electricity from CAMMESA in order to facilitate electricity distribution to its customers in Mendoza.
Continuous disputes regarding tariff adjustments have ted to significant amounts payable to CAMMESA, as detailed
below.

Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s debt prior to January 2016
At 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$19.5 million (AR$2 billion) for historic energy purchases
incurred prior to 2016.

During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESAs historic debt incurred prior to January
2016 (Us$19.5 million (AR$2,000 million)), which included a reduction in late charges, a grace period from 1 February
2016 to April 2018, a financing term of 90 months from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed annual interest
rate of 10%.

On 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA Us$1 7.8 million (AR$1 .8 billion) under this payment plan.

The payment plan establishes that the failure to pay of the plan instalments and/or the invoices whose due date is
during tie terni of tie plan will cause the ‘mmediate and automatic exptation of the financ.ng plan. The agreement
is being fulfilled and there were no unpaid instalments or invoces due during the term at the report ng date.

Article 15 and the implications for CAMMESA’s debt
Notwithstanding the payment plan for CAMMESAs his;orc debt. noteo above ci 21 December 2016. Law 27.341
was published (FY2017 National Government Budget). Article 15 of this law established the compensation terms for
the historic deot that A’gentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA in relat 09 to the purcnase of energy
between 2013 and 2016 (a time durng which electnci:y tariffs were frozen).

Unde tqis iavl CAMMESA was given the aut.norty to offset the differences in the income receved by the oistributors
against the income that weld have been recognised under the concess on agreement (known as the Unearned
Income) In this case. since EDEMSA:5 Unearned Income exceeded the liability owed to CAMMESA for the 2013-
2016 period, the application of the law would have resulted in a complete offset and settlement of the outstanding
liability.

Despite already agreeing to a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 debt (see Settlement of
CAMMESA’s debt prior to January 2Q16), EDEMSA had not relinquished its right to claim the credit outlined in Article
15. Subsequently, the company filed a series of claims with the National Secretary of Energy (SFN), the Province of
Mendoza and the EPRE to enforce the application of Article 15. However, through the Settlement Agreement signed
on 29 December 2022 with the SEN. EDEMSA has now renounced any right, action or administrative, to any judicial,
extrajudicial or arbitration claim in the Argentine Republic and/or abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA
and/or the Province of Mendoza. Additionally, through the Settlement Agreement signed on 3 January 2023 with the
Government of the Province of Mendoza (see Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of
Mendoza) EDEMSA has now relinquished any and all administrative and/orjudicial claims, whether initiated or not for
Unearned Income accrued during the 2008-2022 period, up to the date of signing the agreement This agreement
does not have an impact on the 2021 financial results. As a result, EDEMSA continues to fulfill its commitments under
the oayment plan as noted above.

Settlement of CAMMESA s current debt
As of 3 Decembe’ 2021, EDEMSA owec CAMMESA US$118.2 million (AR$12,1 billion) for energy p.rcbases
incurred after 2018 o’ which USS1 10.4 miHion (ARS1 1.3 bllion) is due immediately EDEMSA is crren:ly n the
process of negotiating a payment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflect,ve of tne tough economic landscape in
which EDEMSA operates

On 4 Decerroer 2020. Law 27591 was publisheo (FY2021 Na:onal Government Budge:). Art ole 87 of th s an
instructs the SEN tc agree a settlement plan to resolve the deots and credits that eiectricity distributor aaents 0’ t9e
MEM .noid with CAMMESA and/or the MEM as of 30 Septemoer 2020. thefl Special System for the Regularization of
Payment Obligations’. On 22 February 2022, by means of DNU (Executive Order issued on the grounds of Necessity
and Urgency) No. 88. the Executive Power extended the negotiation until 31 December 2022
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Settlement of CAMMESA s current debt (continued)
On 29 December 2022, a Deed Agreement was signed by and between EDEMSA, EPRE, the SEN and the
Government of the Province of Mendoza for the resolution of MEMs obligations. The main issues that were agreed
were:

1) Recognition of the debt in favor of CAMMESA,

2) Recognition of the credit in favor of EDEMSA with the SEN,

3) Determination of the payment plan,

4) Renouncing of EDEMSA to any right, action or administrative, judicial, extrajudicial or arbitration claim in the
Argentine Republic and/or abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA and/or the Province of
Mendoza, in relation to the rate freeze for the year 2020 provided for in Decree No.311/20 and its extensions
and/or in Laws No. 27,341 27,431 and 27,541.

5) Closure of lawsuits filed against the National State and/or CAMMESA related to the debt with the Wholesale
Electricity Market.

Among the obligations of the Distributor, EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA
(for the current debt in force as of 30 April 2021) before 31 May 2023 (extended according to SEN’s note NO-2023-
48607674).

At the date of these financia] statements, EDEMSA is within the period stipulated for the signing of the Debt
Regularization Agreement. Therefore, the Company’s Management believes the impact thereof will be recorded at the
moment of execution of the Debt Regularization Agreement that the Distributor carries out with its debtor (CAMMESA).

Although to date the parties have not yet finalised the Debt Regularization Agreement, EDEMSA is negotiating with
the intention of signing it. In the meantime, EDEMSA has made full payments to CAMMESA for all invoices related to
the purchase of energy since March 2021. The signing of the Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA is
crucial for EDEMSA as it would enable the Company to agree a payment plan with its main supplier. This would
contribute to stabilizing its economic and financial situation, ultimately improving the financial position of the entire
Group.

Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza
On 3 January 2023, EDEMSA entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Province of Mendoza, reinforced by the
publication of Decree 70/23 on 31 January 2023, aimed at resolving the disputes originated by the Unearned Income
(as set out in Article 15 of Law 27.341) between 2013 and 2015 that should have been received by EDEMSA but
remained unpaid for reasons attributable to the Province’s obligations.

Pursuant to the abovementioned Settlement Agreement, the Province of Mendoza:

a) has granted EDEMSA a 20-year extension of the concession agreement for the electricity distribution
service effective from 1 August 2028. In addition, it agrees, not to offer EDEMSA’s Class A shares for bidding,
as the current holder expressed its intention to retain such ownership. Furthermore, the Province will not
make any monetary claim against the Distributor for the extension of the concession agreement term,

b) reduces the concession fee (canon) from ten percent (10%) to six percent (6%) from the date this
agreement becomes effective,

c) The Granting Authority, as the holder of Class B and C shares of EDEMSA, commits to take the necessary
corporate actions to ensure that any profits eventually entitled to holders of Class B and C shares will be
allocated to investments aimed at expanding the system and/or improving energy efficiency, and

d) undertakes to comply with tariff readjustment procedures as outlined in the concession agreement and
applicable legislation. It also agrees to include in the determination of tariff charts the costs of certain
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza (continued)

investment pians agreed whn EPRE to be carried out by EDEMSA and the payment plan agreed upon
between EDEMSA, CAMMESA. the SEN and the Province of Mendoza signed in December 2022 to settle
:ts oebts witn tie MEM (See Sett/ement of CAMMESAS current debt) as well as the remaning balance of
the payment pla” sgned betweer the D.st’ibutorard CAMMESA in 208 (See Settlement of CAMMESAs
debt pnorto January 2Q16).

In return, under this Settlement Agreement. EDEMSA:

a) waives any adm,nistrative or judicial claims, whether filed or not, for Unearnec Income accrued durng
2013-2016, upto the date of signing the agreement.

b) undertakes to fulfill the 10-year investment plans agreed upon with EPRE,

c) undertakes to obtain and deliver to the Granting Authority i) the ratification of the agreement by the
shareholders meeting of EDEMSA and its shareholders. and ii) waive all administrative or judicial claims,
whether or not filed to date. In particular, waives any claim — filed or not — before the International Center for
Settlement of Investment Disputes (ICSID) against the Granting Authority and/or EPRE, and

d) the current holder of Class A shares should declare its intention to retain such ownership for the 20-year
extension of the concession. This declaration was completed through a notarial notification dated 13 March
2023

The Settlement Agreement was approved and ratified by the general meeting of the Company duly convened and
held on Friday 24 March 2023. Although the mentioned agreement has no direct impact on the 2021 financial
statemerts, it has a positive effect on the future of EDEMSA, particularly it contributes to the improvement of cash
flows and the value of EDEMSA. mainly because of the concession extension, the reduction of the concessicn fee,
and the recognition of the costs of certain investment plans and payment plans in the determination of tariff charts.
These factors improve the financial position of the Group, making it to continue operating as a going concern
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

EDENOR

Andina has an 1193% indirect interest in EDENOR from 30 June 2021 (see mole details about EDENOR acqusition
in note 15), and in light of the impact of this investment on Andina’s financial results and position, we have included
below a brie1 overview of EDENOR’s operating and financial review for 2021.

Financial review
EDENOR reported a post-tax loss of US$208 million (ARS21 .344 mi ion). The operating oss in 2021 was US$43
mi;lion (AR$4 397 mllior). The operating loss was impacted by the minimal increase of the eectricfty tariff, as a result
of the tariff freeze ordered by the Federa Governmert and the consistent increase in operating costs necessary to
ma:n:a’n the level & service in an inflationary economy. The gross margin in 2021 (inciuding tansmission and
distribution expenses) was 13%.

Operating review
EDENOR’s demand for electricity in 2021 amounted to 26,373 GWh, which represents a 5% increase compared to
that of 2020 Additionally, in 2021 the maximum value of power reached amounted to 5,571 MW, 7.7% above that of
2020. The amount of energy sold in 2021 totaled 21,710 GWh, which represents a 7.6% increase compared to 2020.

Energy losses for 2021 were 17.62%, which represents a decrease compared to the 19.61% of the previous year,
caused mainly by the losses in GWh, and the increase in the hilling of large users (who purchase its energy demand
directly from CAMMESA).

HASA

Andina lost control of HASA on 25 February 2021 when it transferred 50% of its shares in HDS to South American
Energy Development LLC; as at 31 December 2021 Andina held a 40% shareholding in HASA. therefore we have
included a brief overview of HASA’s financial and operating review for 2021 below.

Financial review
The company recorded a loss after tax for the year of US$1.3 million (AR$1 34.6 million) compared to 2020 of US$0.5
million (AR$58.6 million). Sales in real terms decreased amounting to US$3.3 million in 2021 (AR$339 2 million)
compared to US$3.6 million in 2020 (AR$448 7 million). The power generated in 2021 was 82 GWh, a 24.86%
decrease compared to the 110 GWh generated in 2020.

On 19 May 2021,the Ministry of Energy of the Nation approved Resolution 440/2021 with a new remuneration scheme
for energy generating comoanies, The mar modificahons were a 29°/o ircrease in the nice o gene’ated and operated
energy. and the annulment of the future price increase.

Operating review
Water suoply dunng the year was 424.6 hm3 compared to 1306.1 hm3 in 2020. The total energy oroduced during tne
yew was 82 72 MWh, 29.3% ower than the previous year

Water level
The reservoir water level is an ‘ndication of the amount of power that can be generated. The water level at the er.d &
202 was 141 09 meters compared to 152.83 mete-s at the end of 2020.
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

ANDINA GROUP

Key performance indicators
The Directors use a range of performance ndicators to monitor progress in the delivery of the Groups strategic
o’oect’ves. to assess actual performance against targets and to ‘aclitate tne management of the business. They
cons’der the follow’rg key performance md cators to be relevant in assessing performance.

Revenue
Sales provide a measure of the Group’s activity that s influenced by the demand forelect’icity. the amcuntof electricity
geneated and energy phces Revenue increased ‘ram US$1893 million (AR$23 885 million) in 2020 to US$2275
m’llion (AR$23.349 mi lion) in 2021 because of the tariff increases in Januay and September 2021

Gross margin
This represents the margin generated by the core business and excludes all non-operating costs, such as financing
and tax expenses as well as any one-off items. Gross margin in US$ increased to 26.8% in 2021 from 13.6% in 2020

Covid-1 9
Unlike 2020, which was strongly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic that had a high social, economic, and financial
impact! 2021 was a year of economic recovery thanks to the rapid distribution of vaccines and implementation of
vaccination programs all over the world, which allowed for a return to some greater normality in terms of activity.

In 2021! the Federal Government launched an intensive vaccination campaign in order to control the pandemic, which
allowed for a return to normality and therefore a strong rebound in economic activity throughout the year.

Although the future of the pandemic remains unknown, at the date of this report, the situation is stabilised, and
management do not expect significant further impact.

Future developments
The immediate focus for management continues to be on negotiation of the tariff that will ensure the long-term
sustainability of the business and continued investments in infrastructure.

Management is working with the regulatory authorities in order to implement Article 87 of Law 27,591 which is an area
of primary focus for the forthcoming year. The implementation of the referred article is expected to allow EDEMSA to
strengthen its financial situation

Streamlined Energy and Carbon reporting
The Company has no physcal opeations and no employees E’ectricity and gas corsur-ption are below 43000 KWn
annualy. Accor&ngiy, it is no: requ’red to prov’de SECR disclosures.

Dur rg tne years 2021 and 2022. the ‘rst phase of the preparation of the greenhouse gas inventcry was carried out.
this stage incljded: :rain’ng in toe GHG potccc . data collect on visits and the des gn of :he tools to carry out the
annual inventories.

Subsequent events
Information about subsequent everts is oresented ir. noe 31.

Principal risks and uncertainties
lnforrnatior about the Groups and :‘ne Ccmpanys p-inc pa risks and unceniaint es is presented or oages 10- 11.

S172 Statement
S172 Statement is presented on pages 12- 13.
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Set out below are the key operating risks and uncertainties affecting the Group.

Margin risk
The revenues of the Groups principal trading subsidiary EDEMSA and other entities within the Group, EDENOR and
HASA, are subject to a regulated electricity tariff regime set by the national and provincial Government. which is
revised on a specified periodic basis. This directly impacts the Groups profitability and its ability to fund its operating
costs and capital expenditure requirements. Tariffs applicable for the year under review were insufficient to maintain
economic and financial sustainability and the delay in the implementation of tariffs and the delay in the resolution of
previous disputes means the Group is financially exposed. This remains a key risk as continuing delays or shortfalls
in tariff increases could put the Group into financial difficulties.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by closely monitoring the fluctuations in key operating costs and by
implementing hedging strategies to minimize the impact on financial performance as detailed in note 2S The Group
engages in regular presentations and negotiations with the Regulator to advocate for necessary inflation and tariff
adjustments and seek resolutions to the ongoing tariff disputes.

The Group aims to settle its tariff freeze-related debt with CAMMESA arising from the energy purchases between
2013 and 2016, through the signing of the Deed Agreement with the SEN, the Province of Mendoza and the EPRE
on 29 December 2022 On the other hand! the disputes arising from the Unearned Income during the same period
have been resolved through the signing of the SettlementAgreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza
on 3 January 2023.

Economic vulnerability and hyperinflation
The Argentine economy has experienced significant volatility in recent decades. characterised by periods of low or
negative growth! high levels of inflation and significant depreciation of the Argentine Peso, which is the functional
currency of the Group’s Argentine operations. In the last 4 years. the Argentine Peso has experienced a rapid
depreciation against the U.S. dollar and other major foreign currencies and as of 1 July 2018 it qualified as a currency
of a hyperinflationary economy. Rising costs and frozen tariffs are having serious adverse effects on the Group’s
profitability, production expenditure! infrastructure investment and ability to service foreign currency debts.

Since September 2019, the Argentine Government has adopted a series of measures reinstating foreign exchange
controls that limit the Group’s ability to access foreign currency and external financing. Through 2021, high inflation
levels and the Peso’s depreciation remained. These factors pose significant risks to the Group’s liquidity and ability to
access credit, capital markets and payment of goods that are necessary for the provision of the service.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through the strategic use of financial instruments denominated in foreign currency
(US dollar) as well as the purchase of inventory in advance to fix their prices. The Group is analysing different
measures aimed at mitigating the negative effects of this situation on its financial structure, minimising the impact on
the sources of employment, the execution of the investment plan, and the carrying out of the essential operation,
maintenance and improvement-related works that are necessary to maintain the provision of the public service of
electricity distribution and electricity generation, which is the Group’s principal activity, in a satisfactory manner in
terms of quality and safety.
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Political and regulatory interventions
The Groups operatons are based in, Agentr.a and are subject to Argentine laws and regulations. The Argentine
Government has historically exercised significant influence over the economy promulgating numerous, far- reaching
regulations and reforms affecting the economy and electricity companies in particular Amendments to laws and
regulations governing the Group’s operating activities or more stringent implementation or interpretation of these laws
and regulations could have a material adverse impact on the Group.

Mitigation
The Group utilises reputable legal representatives in Argentina to continuously monitor the legal and regulatory
regime. Periodic meetings are held with Argentine tax advisers to review fiscal changes and regulatory requirements.
The updates are typically undertaken on a monthly basis In addition, the Group is a member of ADEERA (Asociación
de Distribuidores de Energia Eléctrica de a Republica Argentina) which consistently works with the Argentine
authorities to assist in the understanding of regulatory constraints and in the modification of legislation designed to
clarify inconsistencies and interpretations of the law.

Plant operating risks
The failure ofan essential component in any of the Group’s operating assets will impact the Group’s ability to distribute
and generate electric.ty through plart outages Dr restrictions on operations. The Group’s assets have been in service
for a substantial amount of time and ag rg is a sign fcantactor in many weas A significant plant comoorent failure
or fahure of a critica’ nor-replaceable plant item may affect the operatinG lifetime of the station.

Mitigation
The plan to mitigate the risks associated with the failure of an essential comoorent in any of the Group’s opeatng
assets involves a risk-based pant ma rtenance and replacement progarm Th s program is desigred to identify and
phoritise maintenance and replacemen: activities based on the level of ris posed by each component or system. By
implementing a r.sk-oased approach to mainterance and replacement. the Group can ensure that critical comoorents
are inspected and maintained more frequertly. reducing tne tikelinooc of unexpected failures Addtionaliy. the
program is monitored Dy regulatory oooies, including the ENRE ano EPRE, to ensure compliance with inoustry
standards and regulations. This oversight helps to identify any potential issues early on, allowing for proactive
measures to be taken to prevent major failures By implementing this plan, the Group can minimise the risk of plant
outages or restrictions on operations and ensure the operating lifetime of its stations is maintained.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

172 STATEMENT

The Directors are required to explain how they consider the interests of key stakeholders and the broad matters set
out in section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (‘Si 72’) when performing their duty to promote the success
of the Company and the Group under 8172. This includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will
have an impact on the long-term success of the Company and the Group.

This 5172 statement explains who the Company’s and the Group’s stakeholders’ groups are, their material issues
and how the Directors of Andina relate to them and their expectations, including the principal decisions made by the
Company and the Group during the financial year. The Si 72 statement focuses on matters of strategic importance to
Andina, and the evel of information disclosed is consistent with the size and the complexity of the business.

When making decisions, each Director ensures that he/she acts in the way he/she considers, in good faith, would
most likely promote the Company’s and the Group’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
so have regard (among other matters) to:

S172(1) (A) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term
The Directors understand Andina’s business and the evolving environment in which it operates, including the
challenges of navigating through the political decisions taken by the Argentine Government resulting in continuous
changes to business rules. The Directors recognise how Andina’s operations, particularly in Argentina, are viewed by
different parts of society and that some decisions they take today may not align with all stakeholders’ interests. Despite
this, the Directors are mindful that their strategic decisions can have long term implications for the business and its
stakeholders. and these implications are carefully assessed.

During 2021 the company increased its investments in the distribution of electricity in Argentina through the acquisition
of a 23.4% equity participation in South American Energy LLP, owner of Empresa de Energia del Cono Sur SA
(EDELCOS), which has a 51% controlling stake in EDENOR, resulting in an indirect participation of 11.93% of the
stock and voting power of EDENOR, see more details in note 15. This strategic, transformational transaction allows
Andina to further expand its regulated electricity asset base in Argentina providing electricity distribution services to
about 3.6 million customers in Buenos Aires City and Mendoza Province.

172(1) (B) The interests of Andina’s employees
Andina’s employees are core to the business and fundamental to its operational success. Significant efforts are being
made to ensure that Andina remains a responsible employer when it comes to payroll, benefits, health, safety and a
positive working environment.

During 2021 due to Covid-i9, taking care of employees’ health was a priority and additional health measures were
taken such as preventive care and vaccination campaigns, delivery of personal care elements, readjustment of
cleaning and disinfection procedures and implementation of home-office working.

The Group invests in its employees through:

• strict health and safety monitoring;
• technical and soft skills training;
• scholarship plans;
• communication apps;
• surveys.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

S172(I) (C) The need to foster Andina’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
Strong arc mutuaHy beneficial re.ationships with suppl.ers, cus:omes and governments are fundamental pillars for
Andina’s operational success. The Group seeks the promotion and application of certain general principles in such
relationships. The ability to promote them effectively is an important factor in the decision to enter or maintain such
relationships. Some of these principles are:

Customers
• Regular monitoring of customer satisfaction rates.
• Faster response to customer calls.
• Implementation of new customer service channels: WhatsApp.
• Improvements in web pages, by incorporating automations and new procedures

Partners and suppliers
• Tenders to ensure equal opportunities for suppliers and the best commercial outcome for the business.
• Health and Safety control plans throughout the value chain,

Governments and regulators
• Permanent dialogue with the government rega’ding the tari’f uodate anc participation in po cy debates of

interest to Andina and the communities r wnicn ‘t operates.

Society’
• Continuous monitoring of environmenta management througn arrual environmental audits,
• Connection with local communities through social media, community workshops and training.
• Sponscrrg of charitable social plans.

S172(1) (D) The impact of Andina’s operations on the community and the environment
Andna regula’ly consults local peoole and NGOs on tie ways in vlhioh tie Group’s activit es could imoact the local
community or the environment. The Group actively partiopates in numerous community projects sucn as

• PAS (Solidarity Help Program): to support teaching and assistance to 3,000+ children in low income /
impoverished areas,

• PLEC (Light at Home Program): since 2005 this program has helped 60,000+ people (12,500 families) to
access electricity in a safe and economically affordable way;

• Alliances with organisations such as Junior Achievement, Fundación Si and FONBEC (Scholarships) to
support the education of young people from poor backgrounds and Fundación ProVivienda Social to achieve
electrical inclusion and smart consumption in vulnerable neighborhoods.

• Close co-operation with the Argentine Red Cross in the framework of the Covid-1 9 pandemic.

The Group utilizes the Integrated Management System to ensure continuous monitoring of environmental
management and ongoing compliance with 50 9001 Quality Management and ISO 14001 Environmental
Management. The Group is subject to annual external environmental audits certifled by IRAM (National Institute of
Standardization and Certifications)

S172(1) (E) The desirability of Andina maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
The desirability of Andina to maintain its reputation for high standards of business conouct. t’ar.slates to the Boaro of
Directors intention to behave responsibly and ensure that the business operates in a responsible manner wthin the
high stanoads of business conouct and good governance.

Regular communication between the Board and the employees and effective. formaiiy minuted Board Meetings ensure
that such standards are maintained. Where appropriate. ircependent legal advice is sought in order to support the
oecision-making process

S172(l) (F) The need to act fairly as between members of the Company and the Group
The D,rectors are responsib.e for choosing a course of actions that enaoles Andina to achieve ;ts long-term strategy,
taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the Directors act fairly as between the Company’s
and the Group’s members but are not required to balance the business interest with those of other stakeholders, and
this can sometimes mean that certain stakeholder interests may not be fully aligned
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive

Javier Alvarez (Chairman)
JavierAlvarez joined the board on 6 October 2022 Jav.er iS 89 Agricultura Engineer (Universidad Nacional del Litoral
A’gentina) and has an MA in Environmental Politics and Globalisation (Kings College UK) with more than 28 years
experience in project deveopment. involving :nternational organisations, national and local governments and
corpo’at 095 (front sectors s’jch as Di: & Gas, Aghbusiness and Services), in Latin America, A’rica, Asia and Europe.
He,s currently the Chairman of tne British. Argentine Chamber of Commerce BACC. based in London. In 2012 Javier
joined Andes Erergia plc. a Isted company on the Londor Stock Exchange. as a Non-Executive Di’ector of the Board
and contirued in the role of the renamed company. Phoenix Giobal Resources plc until 2020.

Valeria Inés de Oliveira Cézar (Chief Executive Officer)
Valeria de Oliveira Cêzarjoined tne boaro on 29 January 2021. She graduated as an Economist from the Universidad
Nacional de Rosario. Later she obtained a Masters degree in Finance from the Tocuato Di Tella University in Buenos
Aires and a diploma in renewable energy from the Champagnat University of Mendoza. Since 2010. she has worked
as a Financial analyst and M&A consultant at Ernst & Young, Banco Meridian and Integra Capital. In 2016 she joined
EDEMSA as Manager of Finance.

Neil Bleasriale (Executive Director)
Neil Bleasdale joined the board on 17 May 2013. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of EDEMSA
Neil is a businessman and holds a B.A. (with honours) from the University of Leeds, England. He also acts as a non-
executive Director and alternate Director of a number of other Argentine companies.

Nicolás Mallo Huergo (Executive Director)
Nicolãs Mallo Huergo joined the board on 27 October2021. He graduated as a lawyer from the Universidad Católica
Argentina in 1993 with a law degree, and obtained a Master in Law (LLM.) with bonours at Northwestern University
School of Law, Chicago, U.S.A., in 1999. He was appointed to the National Courts of Buenos Aires! working as a clerk
between 1990 and 1993. He was admitted to the Bar of the City of Buenos Aires in February of 1994 and he is a
member of the Colegio de Abogados de Ia Ciudad de Buenos Aires.

Non-executive

Julian Collins (Non-Executive Director)
Julian Collins joined the board on 12 June 2020. He brings with him extensive experience of working with a number
of multi-national organizations and corporate entities. In his previous company he was the Operations Manager
responsible for inventory! data processing and accounts for one of the world’s leading computer accessory companies
with branches throughout Europe and the USAHe is also a Director of a number of UK property companies

Marcelo Comba (Non-Executive Director)
Marcelo Comba joined the board on 17 May 2013. Marcelo graduated as a solicitor from the University of Buenos
Aires in 1988 and became a Master in Business Law in 1994 After working in the legal departments of Siemens S.A.
and Ferrovias SAC, he has worked since 2002 as a Partner in the law firm of Aidar Bestene- Garcia Moreno &
Associates. He is also the former President of HASA

Maria Fernanda Martinez (Non-Executive Director)
Ferr.arda Mart rez jcired the board on 29 January 2021. She is an ndust’ial Engineer who graduated from
Universidad Nacional de Cuyo. where she ccmoleted an Excnange program at the Certer Arts et ME: ers ParisTeon
Bordeaux-Talece. obtaining expertise in Environmen:ai Process and Materials Engi.9eerir’g for Sustairabie
Development. She has a Postgraduate Degree in Project Management ard Administration. Wth more than fve years
of expere-ice in the Renewabe Erergy sector she currently serves as EDEMSA’s Senor Anaiyst in the area of
Development and Evaluation of Energy Projects.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Cecilia Aversa (Non-Executive Director)
Ceci a Aversa cined the board on 27 Octoner 2321 She has a Ph D. in Political Sciences (Catholic Univers,ty
University of S&arnanca- University of Rttsburgh). She sewed at the Ministry of Science, Technclcgy and Innovation
of the Argentine Republic for more than a decade as Counselor for International Relations. In 2020. she assumed her
curent roe as Managing DVector of lnnovaton at Integra Captal S A., and became a Member of the Board of
Directors of Integra L t,ium.

By order of :he board

Jevier A{yarez
Chairman
24 May 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Directors present their annual report and audited consofldated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal activities
The Group is a Latin American energy group, with electricity distribution as its principal activity and electricity
generation interests in Argentina

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

Mr Javier Alvarez (Appointed 6 October 2022)
Mr Jorge Rosenblut (Resigned 30 September 2022)
Mr Luis Alvarez Poli (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mr Neil Bleasdale
Mr Julian Collins
Mr Marcelo Comba
Mr Carlos Bastos (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mrs Valeria InOs de Oliveira Cézar (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mrs Maria Fernanda Martinez (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mr Ricardo Nicolás Mallo Huergo (Appointed 27 October2021)
Mrs Cecilia Aversa (Appointed 27 October2021)

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 23.

No ordinary dividends were paid or proposed during the year (2020: US$nil). The Directors do not recommend
payment of a dividend.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors during the year.
These provisions remain in force at the reporting date and at the date of approval of the financial statements.

Financial instruments
Information about the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments and financial risks management is included in
note 25.

Disabled persons
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their
employment within the Group continues and that the appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group that
the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees.

Employee involvement
The Groups policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters
likely to affect employees’ interests.

Information about matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to
achieve a common awareness for all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group’s
perform an ce.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Future developments
Information about the Group’s anc Company’s future deveoprnents is preserted in tie Strategic Report on pages 3-
14.

Independent Auditors
The auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have expressed their wUlingness to continue as auditors and a resolution
to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Going concern
The Directors have reviewed the cash position of the Group and the Company for a period to 30 June 2024 and
consider it appropriate that the Group and the Company financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis
for the reasons set out below.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of US$127.6 million and debt of US$119 million and the
Company had net current liabilities of US$0.9 million and debt of US$9.9 million

In assessing the Grouo’s and tie Company’s abiity to adopt the going concern basis, the Directors have assessed
the Group ano the Company s ability to meet thei’ labilities as they fall due. In the event that any Iia’oil’ties could not
oe met, the Directors could consioer other financing a.ternatives such as the issuance of warrants ard tie sae of
investments, as they have done previousiy.

Tne Drectors have aso reviewed the casn fiow forecasts to 30 June 2024 for the Grouo taking into account tariff
adjustments currency fiuctuations ano scheduled borrow’ngs reayments. and they note that the ability o’the Group
to continue operating is dependent on its abilty to agree a settlement pan for the payaole baiances with CAMMESA

In 2021 the Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA, whose principal activity is electricity distribution in Argentina, reported
a loss for the year of US$19.6 million and had a net current liabilities position of US$126.1 million.

As detailed in note 18, the delays and uncertainties arising from the implementation of the local tariff regime resulted
in EDEMSA deferring payments to its principal supplier CAMMESA, the state-owned electricity wholesaler, with total
current outstanding debts for amounts incurred after 2018, amounting to US$118.2 million at the reporting date, of
which US$110.4 million is due immediately.

Management are currently negotiating the Debt Regularization Agreement’ with CAMMESA, as required by the Deed
Agreement signed between EDEMSA, EPRE, and the SEN on 29 December 2022, the intention for this Debt
Regularization Agreement’ is for EDEMSA and CAMMESA to agree a settlement plan for all current outstanding debts
for amounts incurred after 2018, between EDEMSA and CAMMESA, with an associated payment plan that will spread
payments over approximately 96 months. However, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, the Debt
Regularization Agreement has not been signed If such an agreement were not to be signed, CAMMESA would have
the ñoht to demand fl-c outstanding debt, and EDEMSA and the Group would not have the ablity to pay.

The cutstand ng debt with CAMMESA. and the Groups nabil ty to settle tnis debt, inoica:es the existence ofa materiai
uncertainty which may cast signficant doubt ove’ the Groups ability to cort rue as a going concern Based on the
current progress of tne negotiations whh CAMMESA and the specific amendments to tne payment terms agreed the
Directors bel’eve that the Group will be able to meet its obl’gat’cns as they ‘all due. Thus the D’recors continue to
adopt the gong corcern basis o’ acccjnting in preoahng the corsoldated financia’ statements,

The Group firancia’ statements oo no: ncluoe the ao ustmen:s tnat would resut if the Group was unable to ccnt.nue
as a going concern.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

Under company law, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006.

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each Directnr in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
• so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s and Company’s

auditors are unaware; and
• they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware

of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

By order of the board

svr Avaz
Chairman
24 May 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Andina PLC
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
V our cpir..ori:

• Andina PLC S Grouo financ.aI statennerfis ar.d Company ‘narcial statements (the ‘9nancial statements) g’ve a true and fah
vewof toe sateoftheG-rojp’sandof:he Company’s afairsasa3 December2o2’ and ote Groups profitandtheGroup’s
and Company’s cash flows for the year then ended.

• the Group financiat statements have been property prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

• lhe Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards: and

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”), which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December2021: the Consolidated income
statement, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity,
and the Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements,
which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law, Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities forthe audit ofthe financial statements section
of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which nciudes the FRC’s Ethical S1andad. and we have fulfi”led our other ethical responsi’oiities in
accordance w h these requirements,

Material uncertainty related to going concern
In orm’ng ou’ opinion on the firancial sta:emerts, which is not modified, we have cons’oered Va acecuacy of the disclosure made
in note lÀ to the financial statements concerni”g tne Group’s ab Icy to continue as a goirg concern The de!ays and unce-tai—ties
arising from the implementation of the local lariff regime has resuted in the subsidiary EDEMSA deferring payments to its pnincipa,
supplier CAMMESA the state-owned electricity wholesaler with the total outstanding current debt amounting to USS 1182 miliion

at the reportng nate of wh ch USS 1104 miilion is due mmediately. Ctrrently, tne Group ooes not have suftic,ent I’quid resources
to pay/sette :5 obligations with CAMMESA, Management are currenty negotiating the ‘Debt RegJarzation Agreement’
with CAMr/ESA. as recuired by trre Deed Agreement signed between EDEMSA, EPRE, ano the SE\ on 29 December 2322 the
irtent on for this ‘Debt Regu arization Agreement’ is fo EDEMSA and CAMESA to agree a settement plan for al ou:s:andirg
current debts between EDEMSA and CAMMESA, with an associated payn’en: plan. However at the date of apnrcval of
:nese finarcia’ statements the Debt ReguIarizetio’ Agreement has not been signed. If such an ageement wee rot to be
signed, CAMMESA would have the right to demand the outstanding debt, and EDEMSA and the Group would not have the ability
to pay

These conditions, along with the other matters explained in note 1,4 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going conceal, The financial
statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group were unable to continue as a going concern,
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In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of lhe Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of

this report.

Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’

report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the

other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this

report, any form of assurance thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are

required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material

misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Wth respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK

Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and

matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors! Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors!

Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with

applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,

we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors! responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue

as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

untess the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so,
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtai reasonabe assurance aocut wheter the t’iranc.al sta:ements as a whoa are free from material
rnsslaiemer:. whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors’ renort that includes our cpnion Reasonao’e assurance is a
high leve of assuiance, cc: is re: a guarantee that an audit ccndccied in acco’oance with tSAs (UK) wit always detect a nnate”at
misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arse trom fraud or error and are conside’ed material if, ir’div cually o’ in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these financial
statements,

lrregularlies. including fraud, are instances of ro’-comoliance with laws and reguabons. We design procedures in lire with o,r
responsib l’:’es. outlined above to detect material misstatements ic respectofirregularit’es including fraUd. The ex:entto wnich ow
procedures are capaole of detecting rregula:es. including ‘caud is detai ed oelow

Oases en our unders:and’ng of the Grouo and industry. we icenttied lhat toe princioal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to breaches of energy marlcel regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, tax and employment
laws ir the juiisdictions in which the Group operates. and unethical and piohibited business practices, and we considered the extent
to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements, We also considered those laws and regulations
that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated management’s incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial slatenienfs (including the risk of override of controls), and determined
that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue cr reduce expenditure, and
management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

• Inquiries with the Directors and management, regarding consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

• Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in respect of critical accounting judgements and significant
accounting estimates:

• Review of minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors;
• Inspection of supporting documentation, where appropriate; and
• Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with certain unusual account combinations

There are inherent lii’nitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also. the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by. for example. forgery or intentional misrepresentations. or through collusion

A fudner desc’iption of our respos’bi.ities for toe audit of I”e financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at’
www.frc.org uk.’auditors’esponsio lit es. This aescription forms part of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

This repol. including the cp’nions. has been prepared for ano ony br the Comoany s members as a body n aocordarce with
Cnapte’ 3 of Pan 16 ot the Companies Act 2305 and fo’ no other purpose. We do not, in givng these coinions. accept o’ assume
responsibility for any otner purpose or to any otner person to whom tnis report is snov,n or into whose hands it may come save
vd”ere exp’ess’y agreed by cur prior consent ir wdtrg.
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Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by taw are not made; or

• the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Timothy McAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London

25 May 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit I (loss)

Gain on dsposal of contro lir.g irterest
Loss on financial irstruments measured at fair value
througn profit or loss
Firance income

Finance costs

Hyperinflatior impac:

Share of orofits in assoca:es

Profit I (loss) before taxation

Income tax (charge)/credit

Profit! (loss) for the financial year

Profit! (loss) for the financial year is attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company

- Non-controlling interests

Note

9

10

121

14

11

The accompanyn notes on pages 32—83 fc’m ar ir:egra part of tnese franca sta:emen:s.

2021 2020

us$,000 us$,000

Revenue 4 227,532 189,280

Cost of sales (166540) (163,500)

Gross profit 60,992 25,780

S

(22,012) (17,989)

(23,499) (18,211)

1,954 1.461

17,435 (8,959)

679 -

(10.411) (2,646)

7.826 1,270

(57.476) (50.569)

51,315 29.086

36535 -

45,903 (21,818)

(30,444) 872

15,459 (20,946)

25,049 (10,570)

(9,590) (10,376)

1 5,459 (20,946)
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020

us$,000 us$.000

Profit / (loss) for the financial year 15,459 (20,946)

Other comprehensive income! (expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Translation differences 1.21 12006 (2,011)

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes (*) (845) (344)

Tax relating to other comprehensive gain! (ioss) 311 (36)

Other comprehensive income! (expense) for the year 11472 (2,391)

Total comprehensive income I (expense) for the year 25.931 (23.337)

Tota: comprehens ye income! (expense) for the yea is
attributable tc:

- Owners of tne parent company 30444 (11513)

- Non-con:rc’ling interests (3513) (11827)

26,931 (23,337)

(*) For the year-ended 31 December2021. includes amounts of USD$(1 million) and USD$0.2million. relating to
subsidiaries and associates, respectively.

The accompanying notes on pages 32—83 form an integral part of these financial statement
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
Note US$000 US$000

Non-current assets

lrvesmen: i associates and subsicianes 14 53.700 -

lrtarg’ble assets 12 - 7.573
Properly, plant and equipment 13 246675 198,724

Right of use assets 20 - 1,170

Inventories 16 3,514 2,725

Trade and other receivables 17 1,420 26

305,309 210,218

Current assets

Inventories 16 3,917 3,234

Trade and other receivables 17 49,436 48,788

Short term investments 14 62,181 54,918
Cash and cash equivalenls 1.12 5,820 10,229

121,354 117,169
Total assets 426,663 327,387

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 18 (239,486) (195,217)

Borrowings 19 (76) (2,915)

Leases 20 (168) (295)
Provisions 21 (8.073) (8.799)

De red oenef,t pension liability 23 (1.1081 )1.C94)

(248,911) (208,320)
Non-current liabilities

T’ade and other payab es 18 (19981) (21.890)
Bo’rowings 19 (12.867) (2.880)

Leases 20 (578) (688)
Provisions 21 (139) (266)
Deferred tax I ani ity 22 (54,453) (33.363)
Defined bene’t persion liabili:y 23 (4.222 (3.’55)

(92,240) (62,563)

Total liabilities (341,151) (270,883)

Net assets 85512 56,504
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020

us$.000 us$,000

Equity
Share capital 24 24,473 20,852

Share premium 24 7,655 4,758

Translation reserve 24 34,482 28,889

Merger reserve 24 40,432 40432

Accumulated losses 24 (45862) (70,713)

Equity attrib table to owners of the parent coripany 61,180 24218

Ncr-cor.tro li1g interests 24,332 32286

Total equity 85,512 56,504

The accompanying notes on pages 32—83 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The f,nancial statements on pages 23 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors and aLthorised for issue
on 24 May 2023 and are sigred on its beba.f by:

N

avier A!varez
Chairman

- 26 -



ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
uss-000 us$,000

Non-current assets
Investments in associates and subsidiaries 14 86,253 34831
Trade and other receivables 17 2.354 5,458

88.807 40,289
Current assets
Trade and other reDeivables 17 142 455
Cash and cash equiva:ents 1.12 1 18

143 473
Total assets 88750 40,762

Current liabilities
Trade and other payaoes 18 (1.029) (1 061)
Bor’ow r.gs 19 - (2.813)

(1.029) (3874)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and o:ber payables 18 (3.620) (4.199)
Borrowings 19 (9.856) -

(13,476) (4,199)
Total liabilities (14,505) (8,073)
Net assets 74,245 32,689

Equity
Share caoi:aI 24 24473 20,852
Share prem urn 24 7655 4,758
Transation reserve 24 (2646) (2,716)
Merger reserve 24 43.432 ‘0.432
O:qer comnrehensve income 24 151 -

Retained earnngs/(aocumuIated losses) 24 4180 (33 637)
Total equity 74,245 32,689

As permitted by s4C5 Companies Act 2036. toe Corr-oary has not rneserted its own income sta:ement and rela:ed
no:es The Conipanys Prof t for the year was US$34817000 (2020- USSG2O000)

The accompanying notes on pages 32—83 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and autborised for issue on 24 May 2023 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Jvier Ak)arez
Chairman
Company Registration No. 8095058
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
Note US$000 US$000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 38,720 31,430
Interest received 9 3,859 4,342
Net cash generated from operating activities 42,579 35,772

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (10,694) (9,454)
Purchase of current investments 14 (45,005) (31,023)
Sale of current investments 14 7,179 9,032
Purchase of interest in associate (14,040) -

Net cash used in investing activities (62,560) (31,445)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 10,053 228
Repayment of borrowings (2,053) (49)
Proceeds from share issuance 6,518 -

Net cash generated from financing activities 14,518 179
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash (5,463) 4,506equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1.12 10,229 7,851
Effect of foreign exchange rates 1.21 1,054 (2,1 28)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5,820 10,229

The accompanying notes on pages 32—83 form an integral part of these financial statement&

Significant non-cash transactions

The significant non-cash transactions in 2021 and 2020 are detailed below:

Note 2021 2020

US$000 US$000
Transfer of inventory to property, plant and equipment 16 3,553 2,258
Debt cancellation for transfer of HDS 19 2,813
Debt capitalization 19

- 10,706
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ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020

Note US$000 US$000

Gash flows from operating activities

Cash (Lsed in) / gerieratec from ooe’atons 29 (435) 23
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating

‘436 23activities

__________

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of interest in associate (14,040) -

Net cash used in investing activities (14,040) -

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings -

Repayment of borrowings (2,012) (24)

Capital increase 6,518 -

Net cash generated from! (used in) financing activities 14,459 (24)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17) (1)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18 19
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1 15

The acccrnpanying 90105 on pages 32—83 ‘cmi an integral part of these inancia statemen:s

Significant non-cash transactions

The significant non-cash Vansacticns in 2O2 w 2020 are detailed below:

Note 2021 2020

uS$.000 US$.000

Debt cancellaton fo’ z-ansfe’ of HDS shares 19 2.83

Otne ocyables settlement 1; 1.696

Debt capi:aiisation 19
- 10 7C6

ii Gancetist’on of lire debts and credits bekseen AESA end Andre
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Accounting policies

1.1 General information
Andina Plc (“the Company) is a public limited company, limited by shares, domiciled and incorporated in England
and Wales. The registered office is 1-3 Charter Square, Sheffield, United Kingdom, Si 4HS. The company is a
local energy leader with two of the largest electricity utilities in terms of market share in Argentina.

1.2 Basis of preparation
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted
international accounting standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies reporting under those standards.

The consolidated francial statements have been prepared uroer the historc cost convention, except for the
financial assets and financial liabrlities measured at far value through profit or loss and the net assets aid results
of the Groups operations in Argentina. an economy that is considered hyperinflationary. which are expressed in
terms of the measuring urit current at the closing date of the reporting period.

The comoany’s functional currency was maintaired in the currency of the primary economicenvi’orment in w9ich
it ope’ates wbch is Pounds S:eriing. The presentation currency for the cosol dated and Company ‘inanciai
statements is US dollars See note 1.20 for more detais about functiora! and presentation currency. The
consolidated financ al statements are prepared in US oolars (USS). rounded to the nearest Thousand

The preparatior of financial statements in conformity with the applicab a framework detailed above requires
management to make judgemerts. est mates and assumptons that affect tne application of polices and reported

amourts of assets and labi’it es. income and expenses. The estimates and assocated assump: ons are based
on historical experience and factors that are oe ieved to be reasonable under the cfrcjmstances. tne results of
which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or compexity. or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disciosed in note 3.

Theestimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed or an 09-going bass. Revisions to accountirg estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revison only affects that period or in :be period
of revsion and future perioos if the revision affects ootb current and future oeriods.

1.3 Basis of consolidation
Tne conso’idated financia statements include the financial statements of Ancina ar.d its subsidiar es.

Suosidiaries are entities wbcb are controlled oy the Group Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable rezjrns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
ts power to direct the activties of the entity

The results of subsidiaries acqu red or disposed of during me year are incEuded in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, where appropriate.

Where necessary. adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the Group All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s interest
therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination together with the non-controlling interests’ share of profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income since the date of control The non-controlling interest of shareholders in an acquisition is
initially measured at their proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised
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I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in interests in subsidiaries without changes in control
Transactions with nor-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of contro! are reco’ded as equity
:ansactions. i e.. as transactons with snareholoers in ther capacity as such. The value recorded correspords
to the di’fe’ence between the fair valje of he consderation paid and/or received ard the proportion acquired
and/or transferred of the accounted value a’ the net assets of the subs diary.

Sale of subsidiaries with loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the subsidiary is no longer consolidated and any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value on the date on which control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income with respect to the subsidiary are recorded
as if the Group had directly sold the related assets or liabilities. This accounting treatment may cause the amounts
already recognised in other comprehensive income to be reclassified in the income statement.

1.4 Going concern
The Directors have reviewed the cash position of the Group and the Company for a period to 30 June 2024 and
consider it appropriate that the Group and the Company financial statements are prepared on the going concern
basis for the reasons set out below.

At 31 December2021, the Group had net current liabilities of US$127.6 million and debt of US$12.9 million and
the Company had net current liabilities of US$0.9 million and debt of US$9.9 million.

In assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to adopt the going concern basis, the Directors have assessed
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to meet their liabilities as they fall due. In the event that any liabilities could
not be met the Directors could consider other financing alternatives such as the issuance of warrants and Ihe sale
of investments, as they have done previously.

The Directors have also reviewed tne cash flow forecasts for tne Group, taking into account tariff adustmerts.
currency fiuctuatio.ns and schedued borowngs repayments and they note that the abil.ty of the G’oup to
continue ooerating is deoendenton its ability to agree a sett.ement plan for the payable balarces wth CAMMESA

n 2021. tne Compar.y’s subsidary EDEMSA whose principal ac:vity is electrcitv distribution in A’gentina.
reported a ‘oss for the year of USS19.6 mi!lior and bad a ret cjrrent Pabilities positon c’ US$126.1 mil on

As detailed in note 18. the delays and uncertainties arising from the implementation of the local tariff regime
resu’ted in EDEMSA deferr’rg paymerts to its prncipa suoplier CAMMESA the state-owned eiec:ncity
wnolesaler w th total current oLtstanoirg oebts for amounts incurreo afte 2018, an’ount’ng to US$115.2 mili on
at the reporting date. of whicn US$1 10.4 miflion is due immed ately

Management are currently negot ating the ‘Debt Regularization Agreement’ with CAMMESA. as requ.red by the
Deed Agreement signed between EDEMSA. EPRE and the SEN on 29 December 2222 the intention ‘o This
Debt Regularization Agreement is for EDEMSA and CAMMESA to agree a settlement plan for all current
outstanding debts for amounts incurred after 2018, between EDEMSA and CAMMESA. with an associated
payment plan that will spread payments over approximately 96 months. However, as at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Debt Regularization Agreement has not been signed. If such an agreement were
not to be signed CAMMESA would have the right to demand the outstanding debt, and EDEMSA and the Group
would not have the ability to pay.
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1.4 Going concern (Continued)

The outstanding debt with CAMMESA, and the Group’s inability to settle this debt, indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Based on the current progress of the negotiations with CAMMESA and the specific amendments to the payment
terms agreed, the Directors believe that the Group will be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. Thus, the
Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. The Group financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was
unable to continue as a going concern.

1.5 Revenue
Revenue relates mainly to electricity distribution services.

Energy supply to business and residential customers
The Group supplies electricity to residential and business customers in Mendoza, Argentina. The vast majority
of contractual energy supply arrangements have no fixed duration, require no minimum consumption by the
customer and can be terminated by either party at any time. The Group has determined that no enforceable
rights and obligations exist at inception of the contract and arise only once the Group is the legal supplier of
energy to the customer. The performance obligation is the supply of energy over the contractual term. The
performance obligation is considered to be satisfied as the customer consumes the units of energy delivered.
This is the point at which revenue is recognised.

In respect of energy supply contracts, the Group considers that it has the right to consideration from the customer
for an amount that corresponds directly with the value delivered to the customer through their consumption. It is
the judgement of the Group that the customer consumes energy as the Group supplies and! as a result, the
Group recognises revenue for the amount which the entity has a right to invoice. The Group’s assessment of the
amount that it has a right to invoice includes an assessment of energy supplied to customers between the date
of the last meter reading and the year end (known as unread revenue).

Unread electricity comprises unbiLled revenue and is estimated through the billing systems, using historical
consumption patterns, on a customer-bycustomer basis, taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts
and the differences between actual meter readings being returned and system estimates. Actual meter readings
continue to be compared to system estimates between the balance sheet date and the finalization of the
accounts.

The Group holds a number of energy supply power contracts that specify a minimum consumption volume over
a specified contractual term. The transaction price for these contracts is the minimum supply volume multiplied
by the price determined by EPRE per unit of energy. Revenue from the sale of additional volumes is considered
to be variable and not included in the transaction price. Revenue for these contracts continues to be recognised
as invoiced.

Other operating income
Other operating income primarily arises from ancillary services provided to third parties such as new connections,
reconnections, rights of use on poles, transportation of electricity to other distribution companies and is
recognised at the time the service is provided.
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1.6 Intangible assets
Concession assets
Concession assets represent the amount paid for the concession rights and are related to the electricity
distribution (see note 12).

Concession assets acquired are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis as follows

Corcess;on 30 years (EDEMSA)

The impairment thereof is reviewed annually or more frequently ithee are events o circumstances that
indicate a poteit al irroairment.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost less subsequent depreciation Costs include expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditure generally leads to the recognition of a separate asset as Property, plant and equipment,
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to its residual
value over its estimated useful life, as follows

Lano and build.ngs 0 to 50 years

Machinery and equipment up to 25 years

Networks and power transformers 30 to 50 years

[transformers 30 to 40 years

Land and work-in-progress included within Work in progress and other assets’ are not depreciated. Other assets
include IT and communication equipment, furniture and other goods.

The gain or Loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

1.8 Non-current investments
In its separate financial statements, the Company measures its investments in subsidiaries and associates as
follows

- comroled companies (subs diares) are intialIy measureo at cost and subsequently measued at cost less
any provision for mparmer,t,

- investments in associates are measured initialiy at cost ano subsequently adjusted to reflect the investors
snare of the net assets of tie assoc ate

- 35 -



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Borrowing costs related to non-current assets
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which are assets thai necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

The commencement date for capitahsation is when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying asset;
(b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.10 Impairment of non-current assets
The carrying amount of the Group’s non-current assets is compared to the recoverable amount of the assets
wner’ever events or charges in d’cumstances indicate that the net book value may not be reccverable. The
recoverable amount is the higner of vaue in use and the fair value ess costs to sell. Value in use is estimated by
reference to the net present value of expected future cash flows of the relevant cash generat.ng unit. If the
recoverable amount is less than the car’ying amount of an asset, an impairment loss is recognised. The rev,sed
carrying amounts are amortised in line with the Group’s accounting policy. A previously reccgnsed impairment
loss is reversed S the recoverable amount irc’eases as a resut of a reversal of the conditons that originalfy
resulted in the impairment The reversal is recognised in the income statement and is limited to the carrying
amount chat would have ceen deterrnned. net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised in the
prior reporting perods.

1.11 Inventories
Raw materials and consumaules are rneasu-ec at the lower of cost and net reaisab:e value Cost is determined
using the weighted average cost formula method. Classificatior is performed based on ave’age ccnsumption of
these assets in recent yea’s The Grouo has no hstory of obso’ete or siow-movng ‘nventory.

1.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include call deposits held with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
vth original matj’ties o’3 months or less.

The Group The Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$,000 uss’oco ussooo uss’ooo

Cash at bank and in hand 947 2.091 1
Short term deposits 4.873 8.138

5.820 10229 1 18

1,13 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Grcup statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the ccntractuai povsions of the instrument Fnancial assets ano financial liabiHties
are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
the Group intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and liability simultaneously.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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1.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value.
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and,
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet
the criteria to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Such assets
are carried at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement.

The Group does not hold any financial assets that meet the conditions for subsequent recognition at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL’) on financial assets that are measured
at amortised cost which comprise mainly trade receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Group recognises lifetime ECL on trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities
The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose forwhich the financial liability
was issued and its characteristics. All purchases of financial liabilities are recorded on the date on which the
Group becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial liability. Unless otherwise indicated the
carrying amounts of the Groups financial liabilities approximate to their fair values. The Group’s financial
liabilities consist only of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination. (ii) held for
trading, or (Ui) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The Group’s financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables, and
loans and borrowings. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset/liability and of allocating interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments through the expected life of the financial
asset/liability or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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1.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability (in whole or in part) is derecognised when the Group has extinguished its contractual
obligations, it expires or is cancelled, Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement hierarchy
The Group classif es its financia’ assets ano financial liabilities measured at far value using a fair vaue hierarchy
t:nat ref ects the sig.n’ficance of the inputs used in making the far value measurement (note 25). The fair value
hierarchy has the c lowing levels:

• Quoted prces (unadjusted) in active markets for ident cal assets or liabilities (Level 1);
• Inputs other than quoted prices included with,n [eve 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as pricesi or ind’ectly (i.e. derived from prices) (ievel 2):
• Inputs fothe asset orFablitythatare not based on observable marketdata (unobservable inputs) (Level

3).

The evel in the fairvalue herarchy within the financia asset or financial liabi’ ty is determined on the basis of the
lowest level input that is s:gnificart to the fair value measurement

1.14 Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its labilities. Ecuity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of
direct issue ccsts. Eouty instruments issued by the Company for non-cash consideration are recorded at the
market value of the equity instrument at the date of issue, net of d rect issue costs.

1.15 Taxation
The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax Tax is recogn sad in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
resoectively.

Current tax
The current income tax charge is caculated on the basis o’ the tax laws enacted or suostantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in Arge.ntna. Management pericdical:y eva’ua:es positions taken in tax
returns w th respect to situations in which applicable tax reguation is subject to interpretation. It estab ishes
provis.cns where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax autbor.ties.
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1.15 Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income lax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets ard liabi.tes are offset vihen the’e is a legaly erforceable r.ght to offset cjrrent tax
assets against curren:tax habil ties ard when the deferred income tax assets and liabilties relate to income taxes
levied by tne same taxatron authority on either the same taxable enhty or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

1.16 Provisions
Provisicrs for legal and c:.ner clams are recogn sed wner the Group has a present legal or construcbve
obligation as a result of past events ano it is more lke’y than not that an outfow o’ resources v.’ill be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the increases specific to the liability.

1.17 Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are
required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or non-current assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed
to terminate the emp.oymert of an employee or to provide te’mirator berefits

Long term benefits for years of service
The Grcup grants comoensa: 09 to emp oyees coveed by the co.lective bargain ng agreement for tne ncustry
labor union who nave completed twenty, twenty-five. tbdy and thirty-five years of service This is Dao in me
form of a special remuneration equivalent to the monthly salary of the month in which the number of years of
service cond tons is met This anicunt doubles when the emoloyee reaches crty years o’ serv ce.

The cost of prov.oing this benef.t is recognised as a iabi i:y a9d an expense over tne pehoo i.n wn ch the
erployee’s serv ces are rece ved
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1.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
Long term benefits for retirement or disability
The Group has a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the
collective bargaining agreement for the industry labor union] for staff reaching retirement age or retiring as a
result of disability prior to this.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method
and is based on actuarial advice

The change in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service during the year is recognised as an
employee cost The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes. settlements and curtailments is recognised as
an expense in measuring profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

The net interest elenie”t is determined by r”ultiplying the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, tak’rg
into account any changes in the net defined bene’!t liab:lity dur.ng the pericd as a resultof contribution and benefit
payments The net nterest is recognised in profit or loss as other finance income or cost.

Remeasurement cnanges comprise actua-ia, gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on
the net defined beneft liability excluding ar-.ounts included in net interest These ae recognised immediatey in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not rec’assified to prcfit and i055 in

subsequent per’ods

1.18 Leases
At inception, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a ‘ease within the scope of IFRS 16. A
contract is. or contains a lease ‘I the contract conveys the right to control the use of an ident f;eo asset for a
period of time in exchange for considerat,on. Wnere a tangible asset is acquired through a ease. the company
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liabi ty at the lease commencement oate. R gh:-of-use assets are
included within properly, plant and equipment.

Lease liab’lities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the iessor over the ease
term, with the discount rate determined by refeence to the rate inherent to the lease un’ess this is not readiiy

oeterm’nable. in wnich case the Group’s increment& borrowing rate on the commencement of the lease is used.
Variabe lease payments are on’y included in the measurement of the lease liabi’ity if they depend on an index
or rate. In such cases, the in.t a, measurement of the lease Iiab.ity assumes the variao’e element will remain
unchanged tnrougnout the lease term,. Othe varable ‘ease oaymerts are expensed in the period to which they
relate

On initia recogn tion, the carrying va’ue of the lease lia’oiiity also includes’
• amounts expected to be oayable under any residual value guarantee:

the exercise price of any ourchase option granteo’ n avour of the Group if it is reasonably certain to
assess that option, and

• any penalt es ayab e for term.nating the lease, i the :em of tne lease has been estimated based on
termination option beIng exercised.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured by the amount of the iease liaoiiity. reduced for any lease incentive
received, and increased by

• lease payments made on or before the commencement of the lease,
• initial direct costs incurred and
• the amount of any provision recognised when the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove

or restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to its initial measurement. lease liabilities increase as a result of interests charged at a constant rate
on the outstanding balance and are reduced alter lease payments are made.
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lAB Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease.

When the Group revises its estimates on the term of any ease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to be made over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount rate that
was applied on the lease commencement. The carrying value of lease habilities is similarly revised when the
variabe e.ement of future lease payments such as a rate or inoex. s revised. In born cases an equ valent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of Ins rightofuse asset win tne revised carryng amount amortiseo
over the remaining (‘evsed) lease term.

Rentals payable unde’ short-te’m low value leases rcluding any ease :ncentives received, are charged tc proft
o’ loss on a svaight-lire basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when another systematic basis is more
representative of the time oatterr in whicn the econom.ic bene’its of the leased asset are ccnsumeo

Determining whether an arrangement is, or contains! a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and / or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

1.19 Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable certainty that those grants will be
collected and that the Group will meet alt the conditions established.

Government grants received in relation to the purchase of non-current assets are deducted from the cost of such
assets. These assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives based on their net acquisition cost.

1.20 Foreign exchange
Functional and presentation currency
The individual finarcial statements of each Group company a’e maintained in the currency of the primary
economc environment :n wh.cb it cpe’ates (its functional currency). whicn in the case of the Arge.nti.nean
companies is the Argentine Peso and in the case of the Company is Pounds Sterling. For the purposes of the
consoldateo £inarcia! statements, the results aro financial posit on of each Grouo entity are expressed in US
ool ars. whicn is the presentation cu’rercy ‘cr tne consc•.idateo ard Ccmoary financ’al statements, to facil,tate
comparison with othe’ utility companies.

The financial statements are presented in US$ and the exchange rates used were

US$ pert I AR$ per US$1

2021 2020 2021 2020

Average Exchange Rate 1.3756 1.284 95.48 69.7

Closing Exchange Rate 1.3535 1.365 102.74 84.41

Functional currency of a hyperinflationary economy
According to lAS 29. the financia statements of an entity that repc’ts n the currency of a byerifiaticna-v
economy must be repo’Ied in terms of the cur’ent measuting unit at:be balance sheetdate. regaroless ofvjhetber
they are baseo on the nis:c cal cost method o’ the current cost method Comparative figures for prior pe’iod(s)
should be restated into the same current measu.ng unit. Restatements are made by appiying a genera’ orce
index. Items such as monetary items that are already stated at the measurng unit at the balance sheet date are
not restateo. Otner ‘tems are restated oased on the change ir the gereral prce index between the date those
items v.’ere acqu red or incurreo and tie balance sheet date. The ccmocnerts of the income stateme’t must be
presented in the updated measuring unit on the date of presentation of the financial statements by applying a
general price index from the date on which the income and expenses were accounted.
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1.20 Foreign exchange (Continued)
In order to determne whether an economy is consdered bypernfationarv a000r&ng to (AS 29 the Standard
detais a seres of elements to be considered which induce an accumulatec nfiat’on rate in three years that
approximates or exceeds 100%. Hence, according to lAS 29, the Argentine eccncmy must oe considered as
hyperin:ationary since 1 July 2018.

The inf aton adjustment of nitial prices was computed taking into consideration the indces estab.shed by the
FACPCE (Argentine Federation of Professional CouncIs in Economic Sciences) based on the prce index
publisheo by the National Statistics Institute (INDEC)

The price indices used for the restatement of the financia statements were:

• 2020 = 385.8826
• 2021 = 582.4575

The ma:n prccedures to determire the inflation adjustment are the fcllcwing:

• All monetary assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position are not adjusted, since the
financial statements are already re-expressed at the year-end exchange rate.

• Non-monetary assets and liabilities that were computed at cost prices at the date of the statement of
financial position and the capital assets are adjusted based on the corresponding adjustment
coefficients.

• All the elements in the income statement are updated applying the relevant conversion factors.
• Gains and losses in purchasing power arising from the net monetary position are recognised in the

consolidated statement of income as a separate line under byperinflation impact and amounted to
US$51.32 million (2020: US$29.09 million).

On the initial adjustment for inflation, the capital asset accounts were adjusted as follows

• The capital was adjusted from the date of the previous hyper inflationary period of Argentina.

Transactions and balances
When preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. On each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the dale on which the fair value was determined. The exchange
differences that arise are included in the income statement for the period.

Foreign subsidiaries conversion
The results and financial oos’hons of the Companys subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s currency are corverted to the repotng currency as fo ows. decending on wnetherthe functiona:
currency sin a hyperinflationary envfronment or not.

Entities with non-hyperinflationary functional currency
• Assets and I ani i:es of each statement of financial positon oresented are converted at ;-e exchange

rate othe closing date of the statement of financiai position.

• The share capita of each statement of financial position peserted is converted at the historical
exchange rate.

• Proits and losses in the income statement are converted at the annual average exchange rate (when
the average exchange rate does not represent a reascnable aopoximat onto the accumulated effect of
the transaction exchange rates, the exchange rate at the date o’ the transaction or mon:nly averages
are used).

• Al; exchange rate differences arsing from this are accounted for ir othe’ comprehensive income.
• Gains and losses derived from the conve’son of the open ng net assets of the Company at prevailing

exchange rates are transferred to the translation reserve.
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I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.20 Foreign exchange (Continued)
Subsidiaries with hyperinflationary functional currency

Assets. liabiiities and capital from the statements of financial pos.ton. as v,el! as profit and loss from the
statement o’inccn.e. are converted at the excoange rate on vie closing date of the statement o’financai
position, after being adjusted to the functional currency.
Assets; liaoilihes. capital, profits and osses of the comparat;ve period are keel .n accordance with the
amounts obtained n the conversion of the previous fnanc’al year. Said amounts are not adjused to the
following exchange rates because the Company presents its financial information in US dollars. a non
hyperinflationary currency.

1.21 Finance income
Finance income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable.

2 Change in accounting policy

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2021
A numbe’ of new and amended s;andards and interpretatiors issued by IASB have become effective for the f rst
time for firanciai periods begnn’ng on (or after) 1 January 2021. None of tnese new and amended standards
and interp’etations had a signif!cant effect on the Company because they are ether not re!evant tc the
Company’s activit es or reQuire accounting which is consistent with the Company’s cjr’ent accounting po1 cies.

New standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted
There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the
IASB that are effective in future accounting periods and which have not been adopted early. None of these are
expected to have a significant effect on the Company, in particular:

- lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current)
- lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: (Sets out bow to consider the cost of

fulfilling a contract to classify it as Onerous Contracts)
IFRS 17 Insurance C•or.t’acts (Sets out princ’ples for the recoontion. .measjrement. presenlatior and
d sclosure of insurance c-ont’acts

- lAS 12 Income Tax’: (sets cut how to account the deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obugations)

- A—endmen:s to lAS 8 ‘Accounting Pol c’es. Changes ir Account.ng Est mates and Errors (Sets
di’erences between account rg oolicies and changes n accountirg estimates, since it wIl depend on
them whether they w,Il be applied correctly retrospectively or prospectivey)

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the per od in wnich the estimate is revised when the revision affects on’y ;nat pe’icd or in the
per:oo of the revison and fjture perioos woen the rev: on affects both current and future oeriods.

- 43 -



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Judgement: Investments in 1-lidroelectrica del Sur SA. and South American Energy LLP

Investment in Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A
On 25 February 2021, Andina Electricidad S.A. (AESA) transferred 50% of the shares it owned in Hidrolectrica

de Sur S.A. (HDS) to South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of a partial debt cancellation
agreement. After t:ne transfer the Comoary’s interest in the shares of HDS reduced from 80% to 40%. and thus
lost the Company ‘ost control of HDS and! as a result, ceased consolda:ing me resu’ts of HDS.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements’ defines control as encompassing three distinct principles, which, if
present, identIfy the existence of control by an investor over an investee, hence forming a parent-subsidiary
relationship. The principles are:

1! Power over the investee;
2, Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement in the investee: and
3. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns,

An investor has power over an investee when the investor has existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities (i.e, the activities that significantly affect the investee’s returns.)

• AESA has no power over the investee because AESA only has a 40% interest in the shares of HDS and
there is no contractual agreement between AESA and SAED to control HDS;

• The relevant decisions are made by the HDS Board of Directors which is made up of 5 regular members;
the Board of Directors meets regularly and adopts resolutions by a simple majority of votes;

• AESA is not exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee because
there is no agreement that estab .sbes the right to variable returns

• AESA does not have the abi’ ty to affect the amount of inc investors returns oecause AESA on y has a
40% interest in the shares of HDS and it cannot ,ake relevant decisions.

As the Company is not exposed to variable returns of HDS. the consolidation princ.ples do not appy and we
cons’der itappropriate to accountforthe investment in lIDS as an equity-accounted investment from 25 February

2021. given we have significant influence over the entty. We do not consider the results of HDS from 1 January
2021 to 25 Feowary 2025 to be materal to consolidate.

Investment in SAE LLP

As at 31 December 2021,the Company has a 234% interest in South American Energy LLP (SAE LLP). financed
through capital contributions and loan agreements. The Company has a 23.4% Indirect interest in Energia del
Cono Sur S.A. (EDELCOS), which is 100% controlled by SAE LLP and an 11,9% indirect interest in EDENOR.

The results of SAE LLP, EDELCOS and EDENOR are not consolidated within the Andina PLC group
consolidated financial statements, as the Company is not exposed to the variable returns of SAE LLP. We
consider it appropriate to account for the investment in SAE LLP as an equity-accounted investment, given we
have significant influence over the entity.

As outlined in the LLP Members’ Agreement:

• SAE LLP decisions (relevant and non-relevant) are by majority in the Members meetings; the Members
are designated by means of an ordinary resolution of the Members and the quorum for each meeting is
having 70% of the members present

• The Company is not exposed to, or does not have rights to the variable returns from its involvement n
the :nvestee. the Company does not nave the ability to affect the amount of the investor’s returns,
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities areas follows.

Carrying value of the Company’s investments and the Group’s tangible and intangible assets
Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually. taking into account pnces prevailing at each
reporling date. The carrying vaues of tangibe and intangible assets are also revieweo for imoairment when there
has been an evert or a change in the circumstances that vioj’d roicate that the carrying amount m’ignt not Oe
recoverabe. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by whicn the assefs carying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoveraole amount is the higher of an assets fair vaiue less the cost to sell ano the value
in use. Fairvalue is determined as the amourt tha: wou:o be ootained from the sale of the asset in an arms length
transactior.

The value in use is determined using the present value & :ne future cash flows expected to be deveo from an
asset or cash-generating unit. The calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual values is based on
reasonable management estimates and is therefore subjective. Operating and economic assumptions that could
affect the valuation of the assets using discounted cash flow models are regularly reviewed and updated as part of
the monitoring of the operational and financial performance and the forecasting processes of the Group. Judgement
is required to determine if operating and economic changes are significant and impact the potential performance of
an asset or a cash-generating unit and, therefore, determine whether they are an indication of an impairment or an
impairment reversal. The key assumptions have been included in note 13.

The value in use of the Company’s investments is determined using the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the cash-generating unit The calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual
values is based on reasonable maragemert estimates and is therefore subjective The assumptions utilised in
determining the value in use we cons stent v/th those desc’ibed above.

Employee benefits
The Group recognises provsions for benef ts based on years c’ se’vice and benefts for ret rement or dsaoi ty that
includes management’s best estimate of certain variables that may rot ultmately match the amounts actually paid
a: the erd of service. The key assumptions are wage increases, employee :urnover. motality rate and discount
rate. Past experience ann actuwial tab es of mortality are used to make the es:mate. For furtner details refer tc
note 23.

Impairment of financial assets
The allowance for the impairment of accounts receivable is assessed based on the delinquent balance, which
comprises all such debt arising from the bills for electricity consumption of small demand (Ti) and medium-demand
(T2). The Company’s management records an allowance by applying to the delinquent balances of each custcmer
category an uncollectible rate that is determined according to each customer category, based on the historical
comparison of collections made.

Additionally, and faced with temporary and/or exceptional situations, the Company’s management may redefine
the amount of the allowance, specifying and supporting the criteria used in all the cases.

The Company nas performed a revew of the financal assets it currently measures and classifes a: fair value
through proft or loss or at amorised cost ard nas concluded that :ney Meet t.ne conditions to mantain tbefr
ciassiqeation.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Contingencies and provisions for lawsuits
The Ccmpary is a par-.v to several complants, lawsu ts and other lega! proceedings including customer claims.
The Company’s potential liability with respect to such claims, lawsuits and legal oroceedings may not be accurately
estimated. The Companys management. with the assistance of its lega advisors. pehodical!y ana’yses the status
of each sigrificant matter and evaluates the Ccmpany’s poten:a1 ¶nancial exposure. If the loss de’iving from a
compairt 0r legal proceeding is considered probab e ard the amount can be easonably estimated, a prcv’sion is
reccded.

Provisions for contingent ]osses represent a reasonable estimate of the losses that wili be incurred, based on the
‘normation available to maragemert at the date of the financial statements prepa’ation. takin.g into account the
Ccmoany’s litigation and settlement s!rategies. These estima:es are mainly made by the Comoanys management
However, if managemenls estimates proved wrong. the current provisions could be macequate and result in a
charge to pro’its that could have an effect on the Statements of Financial Position Comprenensive Income (Loss),
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows

4 Revenue

2021 2020

us$000 us$,0’J0

Revenue analysed by class of business

Electricity distribution 227,532 185,447

Electricity generation - 3,557

Other 276

227,532 189,280

The Groups revenue arises entirely within Argentina.

5 Operating profitl(loss)

2021 2020
us$,000 us$,000

Operating profitl(loss) for the year is stated after charging:
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment iO,9i9 9,253
Amortisation of intangible assets - 318

(*) The amortisation charge for 2020 is included in the cost of sales line in the consolidated income statement as
it relates to the concession assets,
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6 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Group and Company during
the year was

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Number Number Number

SelIng 156 156 - -

Technical 389 399 - -

Administration 154 191
Total 699 746

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Group

Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$,000 us$’ooo us$’oOO us$,000

Wages and salaries 27,368 23,403 - -

Social security costs 6835 5,798

34,203 29,201

7 Auditors’ remuneration

2021 2020
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and associates: US$000 US$’OOO
For audit services

Audit of the financial statements of the Group and Company 223 130
Audit of the firancial staremen:s of the Compary’s sues diares 169 150

392 290
For other services

Aud t-re!ated assurance services 1
Taxation conpliance servces

- 6

6 7
8 Directors’ remuneration

2021 2020
US$!000 usS’ooO

Remuneration fo’ cualifyirg services 113 480

Tne Drectors remuneration disclosed above is not pad by the Company Tne remuneration of the directors
amounting to $113,271 is paid by EDEMSA. a related Group entity No recharges are made to the Company

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2021 2020

Us$,000 US$,000
Remuneration for qualifying services 8 146

The remuneration of the highest paid director is paid by EDEMSA, a related Group entity.
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9 Finance income
2021 2020

us$,000 uS$,000

Interest Income 3,859 4.342

Gain on debt modification - 1,817

Exchange gain 3,967 5,111

7,826 11,270
The gain on debt modification is the gain arising from the forgiveness of interest on the debt with SAED at the time of
entering into the debt cancellation agreement explained in note 19.

10 Finance costs
2021 2020

us$,000 uss,000

Interest on borrowings 2.601 3443

Exchange loss 2.049 5.131
Commercial in:erest 52,826 41 995

57.476 50.569
Commercial interest represents inte’est on EDEMSA’s debt with CAMMESA these interests do not generate cash flow,
see note 18 for more detai on CAMMESAs debts.

11 Income tax charge/(credit)

2021 2020
us$.000 us$000

Current tax

Corporation tax on profit or loss for the current year 9.374 800

Deferred tax

Or gination and reversa of temporary differences 21.070 (1 672)

Total tax cnarge / (credit) 36.444 (872)

The actual charge/(credit) for the year can oe reconciled to the expected charge/(credit) for the year based on the
pofi: or loss and the standa’d rate of tax as follows

2021 2020
uss,000 us$,000

Prafit/(Loss) before taxation 46,903 (21,818)

Expected tax charge/(credit) based on the standard rate of corporation
16066 ‘6 545

tax in Argentina of 35% (2020. 30%)
Unutilised tax losses carried forward (1 921) (94)
Share of profits in associates (12,787)
Other permanent differences 134 282
Hyperinflation impact (according to accounting policies) 8,688 (3,126)
Hyperinflation impact (according to tax laws) 20,264 8,611

Taxation charge/(credit) 30,444 (872)
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11 Income tax charge/(credit) (Continued)

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income:

2021 2020
us$,000 us$’ooo

Deferred tax arising on:
Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income / (loss) (311) 36

a) Minimum Notional Income Tax

The Group was liable to pay a minimum notional income tax at the applicable tax rate, of 1%, calculated on the
value of Fixed and current assets at the reporting date The minimum notional income tax was in addition to
corooration tax arid the Groups tax liability for each financial year was the higher of the minmum notional income
tax and the cornoration tax f0r the year. income tax can be offset against this tax In add tion, any payment of this
tax, not offset by income tax would be treated as a payment on account of income tax computable for a maximum
period of ten years The Group recognised the tax on no:onal presumed income earned in previcus years as a
credt considering that it would offset future taxable income

In 2019 the appl cation of the minimum notioaI ncome tax was repea’ed for years beg.rring on or after 1 January
2319. However, the crecit of USD $006 million at the year end (note 22), is estimated to be used as a partal
payment of corporation tax in the next fisca1 year

b) Suom:ssion of nccme tax oresen:ation correspond ng :0 FY2021

During fiscal year 2022, management of the only controlled-trading subsidiary, EDEMSA, has decided to apply an
alternative methodology to determine the current income tax and accordingly filed with the Argentine Tax Authority
the income tax return for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021, applying the systemic and comprehensive
inflation adjustment mechanism and updating the tax loss carry forwards corresponding to the fiscal periods 2018
and 2019 following the methodology provided in Article 25 of the Income Tax Law (announced text in 2019).

The determination of the current income tax through the aforementioned mechanism implied that the tax to be paid
was AR$0.8 million using all of the accumulated tax losses carried forward with a nominal value of AR$1 726 million
(AR$4,217 million updated in accordance with the mechanism described in the previous paragraph).

The non-application of the aforementioned mechanisms and using the total accumulated nominal tax carried
forward losses would have implied that the tax to be paid amounted to AR$869 million. In this scenario, the effective
rate to be paid would have resulted in a substantial portion of the income obtained by EDEMSA being paid in tax
and would have exceeded a reasonable limit of taxation; as a result, in the opinion of EDEMSA’s tax and legal
adviscs this would constitute an assumption cf confiscation, an assumption thai at the date of issuance of these
Financal Statements has not been alidated o’ cha ienged by the Argertre Tax Authority or by higher courts
Together with the aorementioned income tax presentation. a mult;n.o:e form was presented to the Tax Autnority in
which the applicat on of the mechanisms was repo’eo. arguing that tne effective tax rate would represent a
percentage that would exceeo the reasonable imts of taxation setting up a situation of ccnfisca: on. in volaticn of
art. 17 of me Nationai Constitution (according to ooctrine of tbejudgment Canoy S A cIAFIP and another protection
action, judgment of 07/0312309 Judgments 332.157W. and subsequent orecedents)

The a’orementionec legai doctrine of the Nat ona Supreme Court is uIly app cabIe to tne particuar case of
EDEMSA since the application of:ne regIaticns co not allow the aopl cat on of tne integra: and systematic inflation
adjustment. as nappened n the Candy case•. recognising that the t•o:aIity of the inf ationary effect on its:ax balance
would cause the Company to pay taxes on fictitious income

Notwithstanding what is detailed in the previous paragraph, and given the existing background, during the fiscal
year 2022, EDEMSA decided to determine and file the income tax for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021
considering the atorementioned adjustment mechanisms, considering that: the Argentine Tax Authority could
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11 Income tax chargel(credit) (Continued)

cnallenge the presentaticn and said chalenne could be validateo by higher courts oecause there is no untorm
jurisprudence to da:e that irrefutably validates tne taxpayers position. 19 thEs sense, EDEMSA’s Board of Directos
has reassessed the fiscal year 2022, together with its tax advisors, considering the characteristics of the
presemation, the existing oackground and the anaiysis that the directors made in a timely manre’ and has decided
based on the opinon of their egal and tax advsors that there am sold technical arguments which support the
r’echanisms adopted by the subsoiary In the event of the matter going to the court a favorable resolution for
EDEMSA is considered prooab’e As cf the date o’ issuance of these Financial Statements. EDEMSA has no:
received any challenge or formal rejection by the Tax Authori:y

c) Argentine tax reforms

The enactment of Law 27,430, which was promulgated by the Argentine Congress on 29 December 2017 in the
context of the tax reform, establishes the following rules for the application of the inflation adjustment in income tax:
(i) the update of the cost for goods acquired or investments made in the fiscal years that begin as of 1 January
2018, considering the percentage variations of the CPI provided by the National Institute of Statistic and Census
(INDEC); and (ii) the application of the adjustment set forth in Title V of the Income Tax Law when a percentage of
variation - of the aforementioned index price - accumulated in thirty-six (36) months prior to the fiscal year end that
is liquidated, is greater than 100%, or, with respect to the first, second and third year after its validity, this procedure
will be applicable in case the accumulated variation of that index price, calculated from the beginning of the 3 year
period and until the end of each year, exceeds 55%, 30% and 15% for the first, second and third year of application,
respectively. At the end of this year, there has been an accumulative variation which exceeds the expected
condition Consequently, the tax inflation adjustment has been applied and the cost of goods acquired since the
year 2018 has been updated as established in article 58 of the Argentine Income Tax Law

The enactment of Law 27.541 on Solidari:y and Production Reactivation, which was publ shed in December 2019.
n:oduced some amerdmen:s to different taxes Tne main amendments mlated to Income Tax were i) in tne first
and second fiscal years begur after January 1.2019 , the profi: floss for tax inflation aoustment shall be allccated
as ‘ollows: one six:n in the fiscal year o’ assessmenttbereof and the otherfive sixths ove the following fiscal years;
and ii) the rate applicable to companies for toe third fiscal year commencing after January 1, 2018 is increased
from 25% to 30%

Due to the enactment of Law 27630 puolished in the Dffic.aI Gazette on June 16, 2021 and effecive for the years
begnning on January 1. 2021. tne current rates for corporate income tax were modified acco-ding to the followino
scale

- 25% for accumulated taxable net earnings of up to AR$ 5 million
- 30% for the second tranche, which will reach taxable profits of up to AR$ 50 million
- 35% for taxable profits over AR$ 50 million

Consequently, as a result of the above factors, the tax rate applied in FY21 by the Argentinian subsidiaries is 35%
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12 Intangible assets

ConcessionGroup
Asset

us$,000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 54,833
Hyperinfiation adjustments 4,218
Exchange adjustments (4,648)
At 31 December 2020 54,403
Deconsoljdation (1) (15,888)
Hyperinflation adjustments 15,984
Exchange adjustments (7,139)
At 31 December 2021 47,360
Accumulated amortization and impairment
At January 2020 46 600
Amortizaton charge 318
Hyperint.ation ad;ustments 2,215
Exchange adjustments (2,303)
At 31 December 2020 46,830
Daoorsclidation (1) (8.315)
Hyoernflatior adjustments 15.984
Exchange adjus:rnents (7.39)
At 3 December 2021 47,360
Carrying amount
AtSI December2021

______________

At 31 December 2020 7,573
(I) See note 30 for more details about HOS deccnsoridation

Concession assets
Concession assets represent the amount paid to acquire the concession rights and are comprised of the electricity
distribution businesses.

Under a 1998 concession agreement, SODEMSA was awarded an exclusive right to distribute electricity in the
province of Mendoza The concession agreement is for 30 years divided into three management periods of 10 years
each Dn January 31, 2023, with the publication of Decree 70/23 by the Government of the Province of Mendoza,
the concession period was extended for 20 additional years summarizing 50 years in total

The concession assets related to the electricity distribution business were fully impaired in previous years based
on :1-c vaue in use analysis carried out by the Group The assets remain .mpaired as of the .‘eporting date.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Machinery and Networks and Work in

Group buildings equipment (1) power Transformers progress and Total
transformers other assets

us$,000 us$’ooo us$’OOo usS,000 uss’ooo tjss’ooo
Cost
All Januay 2020 31.028 23495 277.415 36.551 59,196 427.685

Adouons 173 22 255 - 11.262 11,712

Translers 20 1.075 7.032 935 (9 2’3) -

Disposals - - - - (20) (20)

Hyperinflalion adjustments 8,020 6,074 71.705 9,448 15,301 110,548

Exchange adjuslments (8,837) (6,691) (79,010) (10,410) (16,861) (121,809)

Al 31 December 2020 30,585 23,975 277.397 36,524 59,635 428,116

Additions - 176 - - 14,071 14.247

Transfers 16 497 3,434 1.367 (5,314) -

Deconsolidation (2) (173) (87) - - (2,503) (2,763)

Hyperinflation adjuslments 12,621 9.913 115,119 12.079 26,788 176,520

Exchange adjustments (5,636) (4,428) (51,413) (6.769) (10,589) (78.837)

At 31 December 2021 37,411 30.046 344,537 43,201 82,088 537,283

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

All January2020 8.224 18,913 161.785 21,529 15.683 226.134

Deprecialion charge 980 530 6176 1,142 ‘25 9,253

D’sposa’s - - - - (20) (20)

llyper.nial’on acjustme’ts 2.120 4.873 52.107 6.807 4.054 69.961

Exchange adjustments (2.343) (5.386) (56,374) (7,369) (4,464) (75.936)

At 31 December 2020 8 98 18.930 163,69t 22,109 15.675 229.392

Depreciation cbage 1.157 594 7.454 1226 488 10.919

Deconsol dalion 2;’ (4) (57) - - (1,869) (1 940)

Hyperintlalion adjustments 3,726 7,828 70.244 4,570 8,028 34,396

Exchange adjuslments (1,664) (3,497) (30,642) (3,796) (2,560) (42,159)

At 31 December 2021 12,186 23,788 210,750 24,109 19,765 290.608

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2021 25,215 6,258 133,787 19.092 62,323 246,675

At 31 December 2020 21,604 5045 113,703 14,415 43,957 198,724

(1) Includes right-ct-use assets for USS 0,3 million (2020 USS 0,4 million)
(2) See note 30 for more details aboLit HDS deconsolidetion.

Borrowing costs of US$ 2,4 miflion (2020: US$ 2.9) have been capltatised to date to Work in progress and other
assets,

The Ccmpany nac no proper:y, plan: and equipment at 31 December 2021 or 31 December 2020,
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Under the contracts for which the Groups electricity distribution assets were acquired and regulated, there are
restrictions on the use of said assets and also obligations to maintain relevant assets with the intention of protecting
the services they provide. In addition, the Group cannot pledge relevant assets as collateral for borrowings, except
for those borrowings incurred to finance the acquisition of such assets.

Andina operates in a tough economic context, with a hyperinflationary environment as well as uncertainty and
delays in tariff adjustments. This has had an adverse impact on the Group’s operating results, triggering an
impairment review under lAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’.

The Board has carried out an impairment review of long-term assets by comparing their carrying amount to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCD’) or value in use Q’VIU”) For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at their lowest level for which there are largely independent cash inflows (CGU)

The Group has one cash generating unit (CGU) in Distribution (EDEMSA) at 31 December 2021 and had two cash
generat ng unit (CGU) in Distributior (EDEMSA) and generation (HASA) at 31 December 2020

Tne VIU for the CGU is determineo by calculating the net present value of tie future cash flows expected to be
generated by each OGU The estimates c’ ‘u:u-e cash flows were derived from aeproved extrapo ated financial
oudgets usng an estimated industry growth rate. The cash fows .ncuoe the foliowng key assurnpt ons:

1) Tariff increases: Management has calcuia:ed these increases based on the adustment mechanism agreed in
the concession contract ano the current agreed tariffs

2) Discount rate: The discount rate useo s a real irterest ‘ate and reflects specOc rsks ‘ea:ed to the industry
and the ccuntry o’ operation:

3) Growtn rates The cash flows include an estimated growth rate of 1%, which the Directors believe reflects the
expected annual economic growth in the areas where the Group operates:

4) Tax rate. Management has used the tax rate of 35% that is expected to be in effect in each of the periods
considering the current tax law; and

5) Inflation and exchange rates: They are based on estimated and current Argentinean market inflation and
exchange rates.

The VIU calculations for the CGU indicate that there is no impairment at the year end.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions
The carrying value is more sensitive to movements in tariffs and discount rate Accordingly. management has
undertaken a sensitivity analysis on these two key assumptions as outlined below

Change in assumption tmpairment charge

Decrease of 15% USS 5.41 m l on

Increase of 44% USS 1.02 million

Tarif

Discount rate
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14 Investments

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
Notes US$000 USS’OOO US$000 US$000

Non-current

Investment-Andes Electricidad S.A. 15 - - 34476 34780

Investment - Hidroelectrca del SLr S.A 15 1,974 - - -

Investn’.ert - Andina Etectricidad Ltd 15 - - 51 51

Investmert -SAE LLP 15 51726 - 51,726 -

53.700 - 86253 34,831

Current

Listed investments 61 681 50940 - -

Un,isled investments 500 3978

62,181 54,918

115,881 54,918 86253 34,831

Movements in investments Notes Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

us$,000 Us$’ooo us$’ooo Us$’ooo

Non-current

At 1 January -
- 34,831 33,829

Additions 14,040 - 14,040 -

Disposals - - - -

Share of profits in associates 36,535 - 37,301 -

Deconsolidation 30 1974 - - -

Exchangediffepences 1,151 - 81 1,002

At 31 December 53,700 - 86,253 34,831

Current

At 1 January 54.918 42,336 - -

Additions 45,005 31,023 - -

Disposals (7,179) (9,032) - -

Changes in fair value of listed investments 9.568) 2.649 - -

Deconscldation 30 (1.003) - - -

Excnar.ge differences (9.992) (12.058 -

At 31 December 62,181 54,918 - -

115,881 54,918 86,253 34,831
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14 Investments

Interests in associates

(Continued)

Set out below are the associates of the group as at 31 December 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
directly by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business! and the
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Place of
businessl
country of

incorporation 31.12.21

Nature of
relationship

SAE LLP Argentina 23.40% 52% Associate Equity method 51,726 -

HDS Argentina 40% 80% Associate Equity method 1.974 -

Total equity-accounted investments 53,700 -

Summarised financial information for associates

SAE LLP unaudited HDS
Summarised balance sheet 31.1221 31.12.20 31.12.21 I 31.12.20

US$’ooo uS$’000 US$’ooo I uss’ooo
Total current assets 52.130 - 4141 3487
Total non-current assets 170,199 - 8,186 9,566
Total assets 222,329 - 12,328 13,D53
Total current liabilities (23) - (3,067) (1,515)
Total non-current liabilities (1253) - (897) (3,036)
Total liabilities (1276) - (3,964) (4,551)
Net assets 221053 - 8,364 8,502
Profit! (Loss) for the financial year 1 59405 - (3,250) jJ_

Name of
entity

% of ownership
interest

31.12.20

Measurement
method

31.12.21
uS$.000

3 1.12.20
uS$,000
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14 Investments (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

The directors consider the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries and associates to be recoverable based on the
value in use of the assets in EDENOR (supporting the investment in SAE LLP), HASA and EDEMSA.

The value in use for EDENOR and HASA is determined by calculating the net present value of the future cash flows
expected to be generated by each CGIJ The estimates of future cash flows were derived from approved extrapolated
financial budgets using an estimated industry growth rate. The cash flows include the following key assumptions:

1) Tariff increases: Management has calculated these increases based on the adjustment mechanism agreed in
the concession contract and the current agreed tariffs:

2) Discount rate: The discount rate used is a real interest rate and reflects specific risks related to the industry and
the country of operation

3) Growth rates: The cash f cv’s include an estimated growtn rate of 1%. tvn on the Directors be eve reflects the
expected annual economic g’owth in the areas where the Group operates:

4) Tax rate: Management has used the tax rate of 35% that is expected to oe in effect in each c the periods
considering the ciprent tax law: and

5) Inflation and exchange rates: They are eased on estimated and cirrent Argentinean market nflation and
exchange rates

Listed investments
Listed :nvestments comorise mairly national gove-nment bonds from Argentna. Tnese financial assets are valued
baseo on their quoted pr ces at the reporting date (Level 1).

Other investments
Other investments include mainly trust and common funds, and foreign currency. They are carried at fair value through
profit or loss based on managements best estimate (Level 2)
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15 Subsidiaries arid associates and related undertakings

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Name Country of Registered address Principal Control % Held % Held
: incorporation activity 2021 2020

Ho ding D:ect 100: O0IAndha E,ectr’c dad Lmited UK
1-3 Charter Square
Sheffeld 51 4H5 I

Maipu 1252, 2nd Floor,
ndes Electricidad S.A

Argentina Ciudad Autonoma be Holding Direct 100 100(AESA) Buenos Aires

Inversora Andina de
Electricidad S.A (IADESA) Argentina Belgrano 815 -Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100

Mendinverl S A. Argentina Belgrano 815- Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100

SODEMSA Argentina Belgrano 815- Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100

Empresa Distribuidora de
Etectricidad be Mendoza Argentina Belgrano 815- Mendoza

Electricity
Indirect 51 51distributionS.A. (EDEMSA) (I)

Juez Tedin N” 2728- I
Hidroetbctrica del Sur S A.
(HOS) (2) Argentina Ciudad AutOnoma de I Holding No 40 80

Buenos Aires I

Hidroelectrica Ameghino Sarmiento 698- Trelew- Electricity
No 23.6 47Argentina

Chubut l oeneralio’S.A HASA)

Soutr An’er.can Eflergy LLP
UK 1-3 Charte Souare

Holoing Nc 234 52(SAE) (3) Sheff,e’a Si HS

I Investment
: , ann provision i

o’services I I
related to the I I

v Maipb i252 121- cistbution of IEnergia del Cono SL’r S A A-ge’zra Floor - Ciudad Au:dncn’a I electrical I No 23.41 23.41
(EDELCOS) (2)

le Benos Aires I energy I
renewable I I

eere es and I
susta nable
technology

Empresa Distribuidora y 6363 Av. del Liberlador
ElectricitComercializadora None Argentina Ave , Ciudad AutOnoma

d b No 11.9
BA (EDENOR) (1) (3)

_____________

[de Buenos Aires
iS ri u ion

The Company’s subsidiary undertakings all have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares and capital accounts

(1) EOEMSA’s and EDENOR’s financial statements are available at www.cnv.gov.ar
EDEMSA’s shares, rights and obligations under the concession contract may not be assigned, in whole or
pad. to a third party without the prior consent of the province of Mendoza.
EDENORs Class “A” shareholders may transfer their shares only with the prior approval of the ENRE.
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15 Subsidiaries and related undertakings (Continued)

(2) Loss of control of Hidroelectrica del Sur S.A. (bIDS)

On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50% of the shares it owned in HOS. The transfer of HOS shares was made
to South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of a partial debt cancellation agreement that
Andina PLC entered into with SAED. After this transaction, the company has 40% of the HDS capital and
votes, losing control in HOE and therefore indirect control in HASA. The deconsolidation of HOS was
accounted for as of 1 January 2021 due to the fact that the results of HOS between I January 2021 and 25
February 2021 were not significant (the result for that period is US$ 0.3 million (AR$ 32 , 7 million)). Refer to
Note 30 for the HDS balances that have been consolidated as of 31 December 2020.

(3) New investment
Andina has a 23.4% direct interest in South American Energy LLP (SAE) and that interest was financed via
capital contributions (see note 24) and loan agreements (see note 19).

Andina has a 23.4% indirect interest in Energia del Cone Sur S.A. (EDELCOS), which is 100% controlled by
SAE.

On 28 December 2020, EDELCOS entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the SPA) with Argentine
company Pampa Energia S.A., for the transfer and assignment by the latter to EDELCOS of 51% of the capital
stock and voting power of (EDENOR). Andina contributed $14, 100,000 of the price of replacing its share to
23.4%.

16 Inventories

Company
Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$!000 us$o00 us$,000 us$’ooo

Non-current
Raw materials and consumables 3,514 2,725 -

Current
Raw materials and consumables 3,917 3,234 -

During the year US$3.6 million of inventory, mostly spare parts, was transferred to property, plant and equipment
(2020: US$2.3 million); US$4.1 million was transferred to Cost of Sales (2020: US$2.6 million) when the inventory
was used.

Inventory has been classified as current and non-current to reflect the future period of consumption.
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17 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$.000 us$’ooo us$000 us$,000

Non-current
Amounts owed by other group entities - - 959 5,458
Amounts owed by associates 1,173 - 1,173 -

Corporation tax recoverable 3 7 - -

Other receivables 244 19 222 -

1420 25 2354 5,458
Current

Trade receivables 21,388 19,707 - 445
Less provision for imoairment (3,946) (3.373) -

17,442 16334 445

Amounts owed by group Lndedak ngs - - 2569 2559

Less provscr, for impairment - - (2,569) (2569)
Accrjed income (2) 18,524 13,813 - -

Ot’ner receivables it 4935 9,763 19 10
Prepayments 8.535 8.878 123 -

49436 48,788 142 455

(1) Crea w•:, ALL nei 0’ provision ‘a ‘—pa ‘ran:
(2) Energy suppiied penoing billing
(3) Government credils relating to compensation funds, other taxes and social security and other debtors
(4) Advances for works, services and materials

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables and amounts owed by group undertakings are as
follows:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

us$,000 us$’ooo us$’ooo us$,000
Movements in provision for impairment
At 1 January 3.373 2,386 2,569 2,569
Provision for receivables impairment 75 1,900 -

Receivables written off in the year (277) (850) -

Hvcerin’latior ad,us:ments 1.400 617 -

Excbarge differences (625) (680) -

At 31 Dece’noer 3,946 3.373 2,569 2.559

Trade receivables are non-n:erest oearirg and general.y nave a 3Oto 90-day term Due to their short ma:urites. tne
fair value of trade recevables approximates to their bcck value.
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18 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

us$,000 us$’oOo us$’ooo us$’ooo
Non-current
Trade payables (1) 14747 18,437 - -

Other taxation and social security 2,631 3451 2,439 2,460

Amounts owed to associates 2.207 1,169 1,737

Other payables 396 2 12 2

19,981 21,890 3,620 4,199

Current
Trade payables (1) 137,546 147,690 213 195

Other taxation and social security (2) 30,434 14,142 - -

Government payables related to compensation funds (3) 6,438 - - -

Other payables 539 610 235 238
Accrued expenses (4) 64,529 32,775 581 628

239,486 195,217 1,029 1,061

(1) Includes debt with CAMMESA’ non-current USS 14.7 million (historic debt) and current IJSS 121 3 mLiliDn (hislonc debt USS 3 I million and current debt

US$1182 million)

12) Income lax, social aecurity and other taxation.

(3) Net debts for concession lees, subsidies, and Contnbulion for the Compensation ot Electric cods cccE) at the end of the year this net emount is usually a

debt

(4) cAMME5A interest accrued

Trade payables (except amounts due to CAMMCSA) are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 90-day
term. Due to theirshort maturities, the fair value of trade payables approximates to their book value.

Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s debt prior to January 2016
At 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$19.5 million (AR$2 billion) for historic energy purchases
incurred prior to 2016.

During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA’s historic debt incurred prior to
January 2016 (US$19.5 million (AR$2,000 million)), which included a reduction in late charges, a grace period from
1 February 2016 to April 2018, a financing term of 90 months from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed
annual interest rate of 10%.

On 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA us$17.8 million (AR$1.8 billion) under this payment plan.

The payment plan establishes that the failure to pay of the plan instalments and/or the invoices whose due date is
during the term of the plan, will cause the immediate and automatic expiration of the financing plan. The agreement
is being fulfilled and there were no unpaid instalments or invoices due during the term at the reporting date.

Article 15 and the implications for CAMMESA’s debt
Notwithstanding the payment plan for CAMMESA’s historic debt noted above, on 21 December 2016, Law 27.341
was published (FY2O1 7 National Government Budget). Article 15 of this law established the compensation terms for
the historic debt that Argentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA in relation to the purchase of energy
between 2013 and 2016 (a time during which electricity tariffs were frozen).

under this law, CAMMESA was given the authority to offset the differences in the income received by the distributors
against the income that would have been recognised under the concession agreement (known as the unearned
Income). In this case, since EDEMSA’s unearned Income exceeded the liability owed to CAMMESA for the 2013-
2016 period, the application of the law would have resulted in a complete offset and settlement of the outstanding
liability.
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18 Trade and other payables (Continued)

Despite already agreeing to a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 debt (see Settlement of
CAMMESA’s debt prior to Januan/ 2016), EDEMSA had not relinquished its right to claim the credit outlined in Article
15. Subsequenlly. the company filed a series of claims with the National Secretary of Energy (SEN), the Province of
Mendoza and the EPRE to enforce the application of Article 15, However, through the Settlement Agreement signed
on 29 December 2022 with the SEN, EDEMSA has now renounced any right, action or administrative, to any judicial,
extrajudicial or arbitration claim in the Argentine Republic and/or abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA
and/or the Province of Mendoza, Additionally, through the Settlement Agreement signed on 3 January 2023 with the
Government of the Province of Mendoza (see Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza)
EDEMSA has now relinquished any and all administrative and/or judicial claims, whether initiated or not for Unearned
Income accrued during the 2008-2022 period, up to the date of signing the agreement. This agreement does not have
an impact on the 2021 financial results. As a result, EDEMSA continues to fulfill its commitments under the payment
plan, as noted above.

Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s current debt
As of 31 December 2021, EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$118.2 million (AR$12 1 billion) for energy purchases
incurred afte’ 2018. of wnich US$110.4 million (ARS1 1 3 billion) :s due mrrediate.y. EDEMSA is currently in the
process of negot a: rg a payment plan with CAMiV,ESA to ensu’e it is reflective of the tough econom’c landscape in
which EDEMSA operates.

On 14 December 2020, Law 27.591 was publisned (FY2021 Natonal Government Bjdget) A’ticte 87 of this law
instructs the SEN to agree a settlement plan to resolve the debts and credits that electricity distributor agents of the
MEM hold w:tn CAMMESA and/or me MEM as of 30 September 2020, he ‘Special System fothe Regu arization of
Payment ObI gations’. On 22 February 2022. by means of DNU (Executive Order issued on the g’ouros of Necessity
and Urgency) No. 88 the Execut ye Pcwer ex:erded the negotiation un: 31 Decemoer 2022

On 29 December 2022, a Deed Agreement was s gned by and oetween EDEMSA. EPRE, the SEN and the
Government of the Province of Mendoza for the resolution of MEM’s obligations The main issues that were agreed
were:

1) Recognition of the debt in favor of CAMMESA,
2) Recognition of the credit in favor of EDEMSA with the SEN.
3) Determination of the payment plan,
4) Renouncing of EDEMSA to any right, action or administrative, judicial, extrajudicial or arbitration claim in the

Argentine Republic and/cr abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA and/or the Province of
Mendoza, in relation to the rate freeze for the year 2020 provided for in Decree No. 311/20 and its extensions
and/or in Laws No. 27,341, 27.431 and 27,541.

5) Closure of lawsuits filed against the National State and/or CAMMESA related to the debt with the Wholesale
Electricity Market.

Among the obligations of the Distributor, EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA
(for the current debt in force as of 30 April 2021) before 31 May 2023 (extended according to SEN’s note NO-2023-
48507674)

At the date of these financia statemerts. EDEMSA s within the period stipulated fo’ the signing o’ the Debt
Regu:arizat or Agreement. Tnerefore, the Company s Management believes the impact tnereof will be recorded at the
moment of execution othe Debt Regula zation Agreement thatthe Distr outor carres cut w.tn its cebtor (CAMMESA).

A though to date the part es have not yet finalised the Debt Reaula’ization Ag’eerent EDEMSA is negotiating with
the ,ntention of sigring it In the meant me. EDEMSA has made full paymerts tc CAMMESA for all invoces related to
the purcnase of energy since Ma’cb 2021.The sigrirg of the Debt Reg u.arizatic,n Ag’eement wth CAMMESA is cruc’al
for EDEMSA as it wouIo erable tie Company to ag’ee a payment plan with its main suppler This would con’bute to
stabi z ng its economc and nnancia: s tuation, ulbriately impmvig the financial position of the entire Group.
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19 Borrowings

Group
Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$,000 uS$’ooo us$’ooO uss’OOO

Non-current:
Other borrowings 12.867 2.880 9,856

12.867 2.880 9,856
Current:
Bank borrowings - 22 -

Other bcrrowings 76 2.893 -
2.813

76 2.915 - 2,813
12.943 5.795 9.856 2.813

Movement in borrowings is analysed as fofows

Group
Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$,000 us$’ooo uS$•000 tJS$’ooo

At 1 January 5,795 16,735 2,813 8,780
Proceeds from borrowings 10,053 228 9,953 -

Accrued interest 2,083 3,193 1,727 1,194
Fair value valuation 188 188 -

Income for refinancing agreement - (1,822) - (1,822)
Debt capitalization (1) - (10,706) - (5,249)
Repayments of borrowings (2,053) (49) (2,012) (24)
Balance compensation (2) (2,813) - (2,813) -

Deconsolidation (3) (80) - - -

Exchange difference (1,784) - (66)
Al 31 December 12,943 5,795 9,856 2,813

(1) In November 2020, an agreement was signed for certain debts of Andina and Andes Flectricidad S.A. to
convert the outstanding debt, including interest, into equity shares of the Company equivalent to USS 10.7
million. The table below outlines the specific debts that were capitalised:

us$.000
COMPANY

South America Energy Development [[C (SAED) 4,253
Stanhoce Worldwide Serves Inc 986

Subtotal 5,249
Andes Electricidad 8k (AESA)

CrIss Cross lit. Dev Inc 3,072
Generation Cap.:al lnves:ment 2.385

Subtotal 5,457

TOTAL 10,706

(2) On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50% of the shares it owned in HDS. The transfer of HDS shares “as made
to South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of tne debt cancellation agreement that Andina
entered ‘nto with SAED as mentioned above. As corsderation forth s transaction, a USD 2.8 mIlion debt was
cancelled in favor of AESA with Andna (which was offset agairst the debt of 5.4 mi lion tna: AESA had witn
Andina). At 31 December 2021. after the offsets and cancellatons mentored above. Adina has a credit with
AESA of 0.95 million o’sclosed in Note 17 ‘Amounts owed by grouP ude’takings’ n the Company Fnancial
State Tents.

(3) See note 30 for more details about HDS deconsolidaticn
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

The Groups and Company’s other borrowings comprise of

Group

• US$1.7 million loan from Neil Bleasdale, a Director of the Company and a shareholder. The loan is unsecured
and bears annual interest of 8%. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2023. At 31
December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to US$0.5million,

• AR$22.3 million (US$0.2 million) from Trench Energy Consulting SRL The loan is unsecured and bears
annual interest at BADLAR + 5%. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2024. At 31
December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to AR$27.3 million (US$02 million).

Trench Energy Consulting S.R.L. (‘Trench”) provides consulting services related to strategic information to
EDEMSA Trench develops commercial activities and receives, among others, advisory services from Andes
Electricidad S.A., an indirect controlling Company of EDEMSA as part of a development and expansion
plan

• AR$5.5 m.llio.n (USSO.OSmill on) from DALRI SA The loan is unsecureo ano bears annual interest of 8%.
The ‘oan has been presenteo in current other borowings die to the maturity oate of 31 Decemoer 2022. At
31 December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to AR$1.3 million (US$0 O4million).

• AR$21 miflion (US$0.2 ‘a Ilior.) from Magnus Argentina SA (prcvdes finarcia services). The loan i5
unsecured and bears annual interest at BADLAR ÷ 4%. The loan and accrueo ‘nte’est are repayab.e on 31
December 2024 At31 December 2021 the acc’ued ‘nterest amounted to AR$10 million (US$0.1 million)

Company

• US$6 million loan from Crosgo Trading Ltd (provides financial services). The convertible loan is unsecured
and bears 8% annual interest. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 30 June 2025. At 31
December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to U$S1 .6 million and 0.2 million as fair value valuation.

• US$0.35 million loan from Jenkins & Keane LLC (provides financial services). The convertible loan is
unsecured and bears 8% annual interest. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 1 July 2024. At 31
December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to U$S0.05 million

• US$1.6 million loan from Jose Luis Manzano (shareholder of Andina). The loan is unsecured and bears 6%
annual interest. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2021
the accrued interest amounted to U$S0.1 million.
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20 Leases

Group Company

Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
us$.000 us$,000 us$’ooO us$’OOO

Right of use assets i

At 1 January 1,170 1,224 - -

Additions In the year - - - -

Aniortisation - (48) - -

Deconsolidation of HDS 30 (1,170) - - -

Hyperinf lotion adjustments - 331 - -

Exchange adustrnents - (337)
At31 December - 1173

Lease liability (2)
At 1 Janay 983 1.418 - -

New leases obta;ned 919 - - -

Deccnsc’ida:ion of HDS 30 (904) - - -

Repayments of leases (319) (435) - -

Accrued interest 153 - - -

Hyperinfation aojustrents (71) - - -

Exchange adjustme’ts (IS) -

A’. 31 December 746 983

Of which are:
Nor.-cu”ent 578 588 - -

Current 168 295
746 983

(1) lr.clcces cj ldirgs (2020 uss 262 5 iilior) and t-ansfor-ners (2020 USS9DTS mi’lior) This sect or does rot rc ude r.ght-o’-use
assets of EDEMSA ‘a- usD3 mIlton (2020 US$0’ mllior) whic are disccsed ri Prcperty pan:, aid equ’pmen:.

(2) Represer:s he lease I abi ‘:‘es o’ EDEMSA

21 Provisions

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
us$,000 uss’oOo uss’ooo ussooo

Fines 7.500 8,431 - -

Legal crainis 712 634 - -

8,212 9,065 - -

Non-current 139 266 - -

Current 8,073 8,799 - -

8,212 9,065 - -
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21 Provisions (Continued)

Movements in provisions:

Group Fines Total

us$,000 Us$oo0 Us$,000

At 1 January 2021 8.431 634 9,065
Add Ponal provisions in the year 2.609 477 3,086
Used/paid during the yea’ (5476) (544) (6.020)
Exchange d.fference (1.563) (118) (1,681)
Hypernfat;on aoJustment 3,499 263 3762
At 31 December 2021 7,500 712 8212

LegalGroup Fines Total
claims

us$,000 Us$000 us$’Doo

At 1 January 2020 6,119 601 6,720
Additional provisions in the year 4,751 439 5,190
Used/paid during the year (2,277) (390) (2,667)
Exchange difference (1,743) (171) (1,914)
1-lyperinflation adjustment 1,581 155 1,736
At 31 December 2020 8,431 634 9,065

Fines
EDEMSA sac: vties are regulatec by the prcvirc a’ regulator, Ente Provincia Regulador Eléctrico (EPRE). EPRE
regulates the aoprcval and control of tariffs and controls the qua’ity levels of the technica: product and service
the comme’cia’ services, and the comoliance with public safety regulations as provided in the Corcession
Agreement. Failure to cor.ply with the obligat ons may result in penalties being imooseo. As of;he ‘epol ng date.
EDEMSA has U557.5 ml on (2020 USS8 4 milion) for EPRE 5 oenalt:es.

Legal claims
This represents provisions for certain claims relating to penalties in connection with complaints, lawsuits, and
other legal procedures, including customer claims, in which a third party is seeking payment for alleged damages,
reimbursement for losses or compensation connected to the ordinary course of business, which are expected to
crystalli7e under varied terms after the reporting date.

In management’s opinion, after receiving appropriate legal advice, the outcome of these claims is unlikely to
result in a significant loss in excess of the amounts provided.
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22 Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and Company, and
movements thereon:

Liabilities Liabilities
Group

2021 2020
us$.000 us$’oOo

Provision for bad debt (1,061) (709)
Notional income tax (6) (1,364)
Provision for accrued interest payable (11,141) (6,426)
Lmployee benefits (1855) (1,137)
Carry forward losses (11,946) (11 083)
Other 9,732 13.056
Nor-c.vren: assets 71,001 41066
Borrowings 261) (20)

54453 33383

The Company has no deferred tax assets or I abities
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22 Deferred taxation (Continued)

In addition to the net deferred income tax liability of US$54 million (2020: US$33 million), the Group has recognised
a non-offsetting deferred income tax asset of US$nil (2020: US$ nil).

Minimum notional income tax was payable in Argentina and is supplementary to income tax. The Group determined
the amount of minimum notional income tax due at the applicable tax rate (1%) and its tax liability was the higher
of the minimum notional tax and the income tax due. However! if the minimum notional income tax for a given year
exceeded the amount of income tax, such excess may be carried forward against future income tax liabilities for a
maximum of ten years. In 2019 the application of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for the years
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group was liable to pay a minimum notional income tax at the applicable tax rate, of 1%, calculated on the
value of fixed and current assets at the reporting date. The minimum notional income tax was in addition to
corporation tax and the Group’s tax liability for each financial year was the higher of the minimum notional income
tax and the corporation tax for the year. Income tax can be offset against this tax. In addition, any payment of this
tax, not offset by income tax, would be treated as a payment on account of income tax computable for a maximum
period of ten years. The Group recognised the tax on notional presumed income earned in previous years as a
credit, considering that t would offset future taxable income.

In 2019, the apphcation of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for years beginning on or after 1 January
2019. The minimum notional income tax is included as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which minimUm notional income tax can be utilised. However, the credit of
USD $0.06 million at the year end (note 11), is estimated to be used as a partial payment of corporation tax in the
next fiscal year.

In the Group, losses in respect of which deterred tax assets have been recognised will expire between 2022 and
2025.

23 Employee benefits schemes

Long term benefits for years of service
This represents the accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement for
the industry labor union, that have completed twenty, twenty-five, thirty, and thirty-five years of service. This is
paid in the form of a special remuneration equivalent to the monthly salary in the month that the year of service
conditions are met. This amount doubles when the employee reaches forty years of service.

Long term benefits for retirement or disability
The Group operates a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by
the collective bargaining agreement for the industry labor union, for staff reaching retirement age or retiring as a
result of disability prior to this. All such employees who have at least five years of service with the Group are
entitled to this benefit. Employees are paid a bonus equivalent to ten months of their last monthly salary. This
benefit is increased by two percent for each year of service exceeding the first five years.

These benefits are valued according to the actuarial method of the projected unit credit. The Group estimates the
future outcome of certain variables that affect the value of the liability, including the rate of inflation, salary
increases and changes in mortality rates. The amounts calculated are discounted using a discount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the specific risks to the cash flows considered. The differences between the
prior year estimates and the actual charge and changes in estimates are classified as gains and losses within
administrative expenses.
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23 Employee benefits schemes (Continued)

The main assumptions used in the calculation are the discount rate and the expected salary increase. The actual
ra:e used to discount t9e oblia:iors of these benefits was determined by reference to the maket ye d (at the
reporting dale) otthe National Governr-ent’s bords. The salary increase rate responds to the histohcai evoiuon
of it.

2021 2020
Key assumptions

Discount rate 15.5 155
Expected rate of salary increases 9 9

2021 2020
us$,00

Amounts recognized in the income statement 0 US$000

Current service cost 710 586
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 574 513
Total costs 1,284 1,099

2021 2020
us$,00

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income 0 US$000

Actuarial changes related to obligations 845 344

The amounts included in the statement of financial position ansing from obligations in respect of defined benefit
plans are as follows:

2021 2020
Group US$000 US$000

Presert value of oefineo benefit ob igatiors 5.330 4.55C
Defic tn scheme 5330 4.55C

Group Group
Movements in the present va/tie of defined benefit obligations 2021 2020

uS$,000 US$’ooo

Liabilities a: 1 January 4.553 ‘.612
Current service cost 710 586
Bene’its paid (2.547) (1.383)
Actuarial ga is and losses 997 344
Interest cost 574 513
Other 1046 (122)
At 31 December 5330 4.550
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23 Employee benefits schemes (Continued)
The Company had no post-employment benefits at 31 December 2021 or 31 December 2020.

There are no plan assets and therefore the liability presented is the gross defined benefit liability.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit liability outstanding at 31 December 2021 to changes in the main
actuarial assumptions is as follows:

• Increase / decrease of 1% in real discount rate will resutt in a decrease of US$263,000 / an
increase of US$310000 in the liability respectively.

• Increase I decrease of 1% in rate the of salary increases will result in an increase of
US$320000 I a decrease of US$276000 in the liability respectively.

24 Share capital and reserves

Group and Company
2021 2020

Ordinary share capital US$000 US$’OOO
Issued and fully paid
96156,112 (2020: 96,156,112) ordinary shares of lop each {l) 14,904 14,904
44,853,670 (2020: 44,853,670) ordinary shares having a nominal value of

5948 5943
lop per share (I)

26,035,032 (2020: nil) ordinary shares having a nominal value of lop per
3621share 12) , -

Total share capital 24,473 20,852

44,853,670 (2020: 44,853,670) share premium of Sp per share 4,758 4,758
26,035,032 (2020: nil) share premium of 8p per share 2,897 -

Total share premium 7,655 4,758

Preference share capital
Issued and fully paid
50,000 (2020: 50,000) redeemable preference shares of £1 each 78 78
Preference shares classified as liabilities 78 78

(1) Capital increase through a debt capitalization (see note 19)
(2) Capital increase for the purchase of EDENOR (see note 15 to more details about the new investment)

Resrves

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arose following the completion of the demerger of Andes PLC on 11 July2012,

Translation reserve
The translation reserve results from exchange differences arising from the translation of the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations into the presentation currency at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date, and income and
expense items at the average exchange rates for the reporting year.

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)
The retained earnings/(accumulated losses) include all other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e.g.
dividends) not recognised elsewhere.
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25 Financial instruments

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks: market risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk, price risk, credit risk. I qu.dity risk ard capita risk Managemen: seeks to minimize the Groups exposure to
those risks by reviewing and agreeing policies for managing each f’r’,arcial risk and monitoring them on a regular basis,
No formal oolicies have been put in place in order to hedge tne Groups activit’es to the exposure to interest rate risk.
price risk or foreign currency r’s. however they may be ccns’cered in tne future. No derivatves or hedges aga net
these risks were used djrina the year.

There have been no substantive changes in the Group’s exposure to financial rEsks, policies, management or
measurement of them unless otherwise stated in tn’s note.

Principal financial instruments
The Groups principal financial instruments, from which financial instrument risks arises, comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

The table below shows the carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

us$,000 us$.000 us$’ooo us$’ooo
Carrying amount of financial assets
Trade and other receivables 40,663 35,768 142 455
Cash and cash equivalents 5,820 10,229 1 18
Listed investment 62.181 54,918 -

Carrying amount of financial
liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 175,550 206,290 11,473 5,611

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settied by deiver.ng cash or another financial asset

L ouidity risk is monitoreo by :he Grouo to ensure that ii has sufficient resources to meet its financial obligations as tney
‘all due. The liquidity risk of the Group is managed by the Board vibo mOnitor the Grouos liquidity recurements througn
mortnly management accounts and periodic cash flow forecasts New funds are borrowed when required. The Group
intends to maintain a baiance of funding des’gned to reduce liquidity nss whiist also seeKing to minimise the costs of
borrowings. Where app’ooriate the Board w. I seek additional funos from the issue of sha’e cap.tal. private or publ.c
placements.

The table below snows t.ne Group and Company’s financial I aoil ties at tne report ng date oy thei’ remainng contractual
maturity. Tne an’ourts oisc’osed in tne maturity tab e are the cortractua und,scoun:ed cash fiow.s which may differ from
the amounts induced in the statement of fina,-ic al pos’tion because the baances presenteo n the statement of financ al
position are based or d,scounted cash f’ows.
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25 Financial instruments (Continued)

Group Carrying Contractual 1 year I to 5 Over 5
2021 Amount cash flows or less Years Years

us$.000 us$’oOo us$’oOO us$,000 us$’OoO

Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 144523 144,523 144,523 - -

Loans and borrowings 76 76 76 - -

Leases 168 168 168 - -

Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payahles 17,338 24,786 3,448 21338 -

Loans and borrowings 12,867 14,590 - 14,590 -

Leases 578 578 578 -

175,550 164 721 148793 35,928

Company Carrying Contractual 1 year I to 5 Over 5
2021 Amount cash flows or less Years Years

US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000

Current financial liabilities:
Trace and other payables 448 4’8 448 - -

Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 1,169 1.169 - 1.169 -

Loans and borrowings 9,856 10495 - 10.’95
11.473 12.112 448 11.664

Group Carrying Contractual 1 year I to 5 Over 5
2020 Amount cash flows - or less years Years

US$.000 uS$’ooo uS$’ooO US$,000 US$’ooo

Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 181075 181.075 181,075 -

Loans and borrowings 2 915 102 102 -

Leases 295 297 297 -

Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 18437 34,650 4,195 30.455
Loans and bo’row’ngs 2.880 3,697 - 3.697
Leases 688 969 190 779

206,290 220,790 185:859 34,931
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25 Financial instruments (Continued)

Company Carrying Contractual 1 year Ito 5 Over 5
2020 amount cash flows or less years Years

us$,00’J us$’ooo us$’ooo us$-000 us$’ooo
Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 1061 1.061 1061 - -

Loans and borrow nOS 2813 - - - -

Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 1.737 1737 1737 -

Loans ard borrowings - - - - -

5.611 2,798 1.051 1.737 -

Credit risk
In accordance witn the local legislation. the Group is ro: abe to subject is customer poritol o to a regular cred
risk assessment and is therefore exposed to credi: risk due to the possib. i:y tna customers may fal to flee: their
‘inancial obligations. The Group has the right to discor.r,ect services if cus:omers ta Ito meet th&r financial
ool gat ons.

The Group is also subject to counterparty c-edit risk attribuzabe to is deposits of cash and cash equiva ents. The
rsk is mited because the courterparties are bani<s with high cred:t ratings assgned by irternationa! cred.t-rating
agencies

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk a: the reportrg oate was

2021 2020
Group Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum

value exposure value exposure
us$.000 uss-000 us$.000 us$’ooo

Current financial assets:
Trade and other receivables 40683 40.683 35 768 35.768
lnvest’ver.ts 62.181 62.181 54918 54 918
Cash and cash equivaents 5820 5.820 10229 10.229

108684 08.684 00.915 103.95

2021 2020
Company Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum

value exposure Value Exposure
u5$,000 us$’ooo us$’ooo us$’ooo

Current financial assets:
Trade and other receivabLes 142 142 455 455
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1 18 18

143 143 473 473
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25 Financial instruments (Continued)

Market risk
The Group takes on exposure to market risks Market risks arise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies and (b)
interest bearing liabilities and comriiodity risks, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.
Management does not limit the value of risks that may be accepted. However, management is on alert for significant
markel movements and takes these movements into account in their future dealings.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. If variable interest rates increase by 1% compared to the current rate this would result
in a US$0.5 million additional charge to the income statement. The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
comes from variable interest rates on borrowings

The C-cup does not have forma pol.cies and procedures for toe management of interest rate risks as management
considers this risk ins gnificant to the Group’s business.

Price risk
The Group is not sub1ect to once risk due to tariffs not beng open market based but regjiateo. However if ‘uture tariff
reviews are not forthcoming. this will adversely affect cash flows and the ability of the Gmup to invest in the bjsiress
and could impai- Group asset values. The Group has not used any derivative hedges against this risk. In conrection
with electricity sales, the Group is not exoosed to rsks due to fluctuations in the phces paid to purchase eectricty on
the market, since once fiuctuations are passed through to customes.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to the purchase of the copp.er wires used in the distrbution
networks. The Group does not use dervatives to hedge this risk. The Group is arso exposed to price risk due to
inflationary increases :n the price otthe goods and services it pumhases. To manage its exposure to this risk, the Group
has established commercial p-ac:ices aimed at selecting the most convenient supp ic-s which ensure r.ininiizing the
costs of purchasing inputs without impacting their quality

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk thattne fair vaiue orfuture cash flows o’a financial instrumentwil fluctuate because of changes
:n foreign exchange rates.

The Group is manly exposed to currency risks on certain bank deposits. debto’s aid creditors denominated in a
di’feent currency from their functiona currency.

The Grouo s exposure to foreign ou”enoy rsk ma nly relates to balances ;n USS. based on oarryr.g amounts at the
reporting date as folows:

2021 2020
uss,000 Uss’ooo

Trade and other receivables 1.729 874
Investments 42552 50 137
Cash and cash equivalents 20 769
Financial liabilities (12,543) (6,192)

31,758 45,588
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25 Financial instruments (Continued)

Effect on profit of changes in exchange rates

2021 2020
us$,000 us$000

Functional currency strengthening by 23% 5,886 8,449
Functional currency weakening by 23% (I) (5,886) (8,449)

(1) According to the devaluation of the Argentine peso during 2021.

Capital risk
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, to
maintain sufficient financial flexibility in order to undertake investment plans, and to optimise the weighted average cost
of capital and tax efficiency.

To maintain or adjust the optimum capital structure, the Group may look for new debt facilities, issue new share capital
for cash, repay or restructure existing debt, amend its dividend policy, or undertake other restructuring activities
considered appropriate.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt ratio as follows:

Group
2021 2020

us$,000 us$,000
Borrowings excluding leases 12.943 5,795
Less: cash and cash equivalents (5820) (10,229)

Net debt! (credit) 7,123 (4,434)

Total equity 85,512 56,504

Equity and net debt! credit 92,635 52,050

Net debt! (credit) ratio 8% (9%)

The Group have an optimum capital structure of 8% (2020: (9%)).
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26 Capital commitments

Contracts for maintenance of the lines and to investment plan with amounts contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

us$’000 us$’oOo us$’000 us$’oOo
Acquisition of operty plant and equiprert 9.214 8744 -

Al amounts are categorised as less than one year

27 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management inc’ude directors (executive and nor-executive) and senior managementvbo have autnority
for olanning, directing and controlling the Grcup. The compensation pad or payab e to key management for
employee services is shown below:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

uss,000 uss,000 us$,000 us$’OoO

Salaries and other short-term benefits 407 452

407 452

Year end balances with related parties
Amounts outstanding at the reporting date to related parties are staec beow:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

uss,000 uss,000 uss,000 us$,000
EDENOR 1,169 - lieS -

SAE 2 - 2 -

AESA - - 959 3.720
EDELCOS (1.169) - (1.169)
HDS (1.058) - - -

Key management pe’sornel (2.225) (2,094) - -

Amounts owed to key management persornel are due to one of the Company’s directors, Neil Bleasdale and his
related company.

No other transactions occurred with related parties during the current and preceding years.
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28 Cash generated from Group operations

2021 2020
us$.000 us$,000

Profit / (Lass) for the year after tax 15,459 (20,946)
Adjustments for:
Tax charge) (c’ed’t) 30.444 (672)
Shae of profts in assocates (36.535) -

E.nance costs 51512 41,512
Loss on financ al ‘nstruments rreasureo at far value through piOfit 0

9740 427loss
Finance income (3.967) (5.111)
Gain on cisposal of controlling interest (679) -

Hyperi.n’.a:ion impact (51 315) (29,086)
Amortisation of ir.tang’o e assets - 318
Deprecia::on of p’operty, pan: and equipment 10 919 9.253
Increase in provisions 2.933 6,258
Movements in working capital:
Increase in inventories (6.613) (4,253)
Increase in trade ard oThe payables 33.943 40,782
Increase in trade ano other recevabIes (17,091) (6,852)
Cash generated from operations 38,720 31,430

29 Cash generated from Company operations

2021 2020
us$,000 us$.000

Prot for the year after tax 34.817 620
Adjustments for:
Share of orofits n associa:es (37.331) -

Finance costs 1 .936 1,066
Finarce income - (1 .817)
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade and o:ner receivaoies (1.039) (279)
Increase in trade and o:her payab.es 1,151 433
Cash generated from operations (436) 23
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30 HDS deconsolidation

On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50% of the shares it owned in HDS. The transfer of HDS shares was made to South
American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of a partial debt cancellation agreement that Andina PLC entered
into with SAED. After this transaction, the company has 40% of the LIDS capital and votes, losing control in HDS and
therefore indirect control in FlASk
The deconsolidation of the HDS was accounted for as oft January 2021 due to the fact that the results of HDS between
1 January 2021 and 25 February 202 were not signitcant tie balances of HOS as of Febciary 2021 are shown below

25 February 2021

uS$,000

C’rent assets 1.077

Nor-cu-rent assets 5.142
Cirrent liabilites (61)
Nor-cuvert liabilities (5.839)
Resuit for the pehcd 319

The consoldated balances of HDS as of 31 December 2020 are shown below

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HASA HDS Total

Notes US$000 US$000 US$000
Non-current assets
lntangb!e assets 12 7.573 - 7,573
Property, plant and equipren: 13 823 - 823
Rioht cf use assets 20 .1 10 1.170
Total non-current assets 9,566 - 9,566

Current assets
Trade and other rece’vaoles 1.518 14 1,532
Investments 14 1.003 - 1,003
Cash and cash equivalenis 140- 212 952
Total current assets 2,258 226 3487
Total assets 11,824 226 13,053

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1.219) - (1.219)
Borrowings 19 (5) (74) (80)
Leases 20 (216) - (216)
Total current liabilities (1,441) (74) (1515)

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (302) - (302)
Leases 20 (688) - (688)
Deferred tax liability 22 (2.046) - (2,046)
Total non-current liabilities (3,036) - (3,036)
Total liabilities (4,477) (74) (4,551)

Net assets 7,347 152 . 8,502
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30 HDS deconsofldation

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Continued)

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution Costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Hyperinflation impact

Profit before taxation

Tax on (loss)

Loss for the financial year

(Loss) for the financial year is attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company

- Non-controlling interests

HASA

uSS.000

3556

(2 6l9

937

(140)

(291)

506

1152

(874)

(742)

42

(302)

(260)

HDS

uSs.000

Total

uSs.000

3.556

(2619)

937

(26)

52

26

408

(524)

127

37

37

7

30

37

(140)

(317)

52

532

1.560

(1398)

(615)

79

(302)

(223)

(100)

(160)

(260)

(93)

(130)

(223)
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30 HOS deconsolidation (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HASA HDS Total

uS$,000 USS’000 IJSs,000
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)fortheyearatertax (223) - (223)
Ad1ustn,ents for.
Tax (cred t)Icharce 302 - 302
Fir,arcecosts 338 116 454
Hyperinflation impacl (615) - (615)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 661 - 651
Increase in trade and other payables (981) (97) (1,078)
Increase in trade and other receivables 543 - 543

Net cash generated from operating activities 25 19 44

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (177) - (177)

Net cash used in investing activities (177) - (177)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 79 - 79
Repayment of borrowings paid (130) - (130)

Net cash used in financing activities (51) - (51)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (203) 19 (184)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 495 170 665
Effect of foreign exchange rates 448 23 471

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 740 212 952
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31 Subsequent events

New investment
Betweer. 30 August 2022 and 21 December 2022, Andina acquired 135.13C 876 ordinary shares at ECHO
ENERGY PLC (AIM: ECHO)! the Latin Amer.can focused ene’gy company for 0.25 pence per share.
reoresenta:ive of a 491% of the capita stock arc voting powe’

ECHO ENERGY PLC has a 70% ron-operated paicpation in tne Sarta Cruz Sur assets, ccns’sting 0’ five
production concessions, which produce gas and at Tne Santa Cruz Sur assets are located in the Austral basir
onshore Argentna and with irfrastructure in place for gas transport by pipeline to Buenos Aires and oil sales at
the PuMa Layola termina. for both oomestic and export sales

CQVID-19
Unlike 2020, which was strongly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic that had a high social, economic and
financial impact, 2021 was a year of economic recovery thanks to the rapid distribution of vaccines and
implementation of vaccination programs all over the world, which allowed for a return to some greater normalcy
in terms of activity.

In 2021. the Federal Government launched an intensive vaccination campaign in order to control the pandemic.
which allowed for a return to normal and thereby for a strong rebound in economic activity throughout the year.

Although the future of the pandemic remains unknown, at the date of this report, the situation is stabilised, and
management do not expect significant further impact.

C.4MMESA
On 29 December 2022, a Deed Agreement was signed by and between EDEMSA, EPRE, the SEN and the
Government of the Province of Mendoza for the resolution of MEM’s obligations. The main issues that were agreed
were:

1) Recognition of the debt in favor of CAMMESA,
2) Recognition of the credit in favor of EDEMSA with the SEN.
3) Determination of the payment plan,
4) Renouncing of EDEMSA to any right, action or administrative, judicial, extrajudicial or arbitration claim in
the Argentine Republic and/or abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA and/or the Province of Mendoza.
in relation to the ‘ate freeze forthe year 2020 provideo for in Decree No. 311/20 aro its extensions aid/c- in Laws No.
27.341, 27.431 ano 27 54.
5) C osLre of lawsu’ts filed against the National State ard/o CAAMESA related to the debt with the Wnolesale
Eleotricity Market

Among tne obigations of the DistribLtor. EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Regularization Agreement wth CAMMESA
(for the current debt in force as o’ 30 April 2021) be’ore 31 May 2023 (extenoeo according to SEN s rote NO-2023-
48607674)

At the oate of these f na.noial statements. EDEMSA is within the period st pulated for the signing 0r tne Debt
Regulariza:ion Ag’eemert Therefore, the Compary’s Management believes the imoact thereofw II oe recorded at tie
moment c’execution of the Debt Regula’izaon Agreement that the Oist’ibu:orcarres out with its debtor (CAMMESA)

Although to oate tne pales have not yet raliseo tne Debt Regularization Agree.’ient. EDEMSA is negot:atirg w’th
the intentor of sgning it In tne meantime. EDEMSA has made ful paymerts to CAMMESA for al ‘rvoices relateo to
tie purchase of energy s nce March 2021. Tne signrig of the Debt Regula’izaticn Aweement w’th CAMMESA is
crucial for EDEMSA as it would enable the Company to agree a payment plan with its main supplier This would
contribute to stabilizing its economic and financial situation. ultimately improving the financial position of the entire
Group.
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31 Subsequent events (Continued)

Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of fl4endoza
On 3 January 2023, EDEMSA entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Province of Mendoza, reinforced by
the publication of Decree 70/23 on 31 January 2023, aimed at resolving the disputes originated by the Unearned
Income (as set out in Article 15 of Law 27.341) during 2013 and 2016 that should have been received by EDEMSA
and remained unpaid for reasons attributable to the Province’s obligations.

Pursuant to the abovementioned Settlement Agreement, the Province of Mendoza:

a) has granted EDEMSA a 20-year extension of the concession agreement for the electricity distribution service
as from 1 August 2028. In addition, it agrees, not to offer for bid the award of EDEMSA’s Class A shares in
view of the intent declared by the current holder to retain such ownership, and not to make any monetary claim
against the Distributor for the extension of the concession agreement term hereby granted,

b) reduces the concession fee (canon) from ten percent (10%) to six percent (6%) from the date this agreement
becomes effective,

-

c) The Granting Authority, as holder of Class B and C shares of EDEMSA, undertakes to carry out the necessary
corporate actions for the purpose of ensuring that the profits to which holders of Class B and C shares may be
eventually entitled during the validity of the concession agreement be allocated to investments intended to
expand the system and/or energy efficiency, and

d) undertakes to comply with the tariff readjustment procedures under the concession agreement and the
applicable legislation, and to recognise in the determination of the tariff charts the costs of certain investment
plans to be carried out by EDEMSA and the payment plan agreed between EDEMSA, CAMMESA, the SEN
and the Province of Mendoza signed in December 2022 to regularize its debts with the MEM (See Settlement
of CAMMESA’s current debt), and the balance of the payment plan signed by the Distributor and CAMMESA
in 2018 (See Settlement of CAMMESA’s historic debt).

On the other hand, EDEMSA:

a) waives any administrative or judicial claims, whether filed or not, for Unearned Income accrued during 2013-
2016, up to the date of signing the agreement,

b) undertakes to fulfill a 10-year investment plans agreed with EPRE,

c) undertakes to obtain and deliver to the Granting Authority 0 the ratification by the shareholders meeting of
EDEMSA and its shareholders of the conditions of this transaction, with ii) waive all administrative or judicial
claims, whether or not filed to date. In particular, waives any claim — filed or not—before the International Center
for Settlement of Investment Disputes (ICSID) against the Granting Authority and/or EPRE, and

d) the current holder of Class A shares should declare its intention to retain such ownership; this was completed
through notarial notification dated 13 March 2023.

Although the mentioned agreement has no direct impact to the 2021 financial statements, it reflects positively on
the future of EDEMSA, particularly relating to the improvement of cash flows and the value of EDEMSA, because
of the 20-year concession extension, the reduction of the concession fee and due to the recognition in the
determination of the tariff charts the costs of certain investment plans to be carried Out by EDEMSA and of the
payment plan agreed between EDEMSA, CAMMESA, the SEN and the Province of Mendoza, thereby improving
the financial position of the Group making it to continue operating as a going concern.
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31 Subsequent events (Continued)

Economic context
Betweefl 1 Jant.ary 2022 and 27 AprI 2023. the Argent!re neso deoreciated by 116% compared with the US
dol.ar whicn nas Icc to an rcrease ir costs. There s a risK wat These increased ccsts nay rot be able to be
oasseo onto tie :anffs

To the best o the kncwledge arc unde’standng cf rnanaçemen: and directors, since 31 December 2021 there
have ceer ro other significart subsequentevents not discosed in tnisAnnual RepcrtthatcoId alfecube financial
sta:enien:s presented for 2321
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